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CROATIA BANKA d.d.

INTRODUCTION

The Annual Report includes the Management Board Report on the Bank’s position, an overview of financial
and operational performance, audited financial statements, together with the Independent Auditor’s
Report, and other regulatory reports for the Croatian National Bank. Unless otherwise noted, all amounts
in the Annual Report are presented in thousands of kunas.

Legal form

The Annual Report has been prepared pursuant to the Accounting Act and the Companies Act which require
reporting to the shareholders at the annual meeting of shareholders by the company management.
Pursuant to the Companies Act, the full statutory set of financial statements consists of the statement of
financial position, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the cash
flow statement and notes to the financial statements, and the Companies Act stipulates in Article 250a an
obligation to submit an annual report on the Bank’s state of affairs.

The annual financial statements have been prepared in line with the legal requirements for bank accounting
in Croatia and audited in accordance with International Standards on Auditing.

Abbreviations

In this Annual Report, Croatia banka d.d. is referred to as the “Bank”, the Croatian National Bank as the
“CNB”, the Croatian Bank for Reconstruction and Development as the “CBRD”, the State Agency for Deposit
Insurance and Bank Rehabilitation as the “DAB” and the Financial Agency as "FINA", European Union as the
“EU” and gross domestic product as the “GDP”.

Exchange rates

For the purpose of translating the amounts in foreign currencies into HRK amounts, the following mid
exchange rates of the CNB were used:

At 31 December 2017 EUR 1 = HRK 7.513648; USD 1 = HRK 6.269733
At 31 December 2016 EUR 1 =HRK 7.557787; USD 1 = HRK 7.168536
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Operational summary and key financial indicators
(amounts in millions of HRK)

Indicator / Year 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

Key indicators

Profit/(loss) before tax (31) 3 2 5 (25)
Net profit/(loss) (31) 2 (15) 4 (25)
Total assets 2,491 3,110 3,109 3,038 2,629
Loans and advances to customers 1,153 1,591 1,893 1,906 1,630
Total deposits received 2,156 2,609 2,616 2,593 2,066
Capital and reserves 152 190 182 200 195

Other indicators
Ratio of operating expenses in

operating income 72.7% 71.5% 73.00% 79.70% 113.70%
Return on equity (17.9%) 0.9% (8.3%) 2.0% (12.6%)
Assets return (1.1%) 0.1% (0.5%) 0.1% (0.9%)
Own funds 146 174 175 171 193
Total capital ratio 15.85% 16.81% 15.91% 13.29% 14.00%

Historical development of the Bank

Croatia banka d.d., Zagreb was founded on 22 December 1989, under the name Banka male privrede, d.d.,
Zagreb. On that day, 50 shareholders paid in socially owned capital contributions to form the initial (share)
capital of 22,340,435,000 former Yugoslav dinars, equivalent to DEM 319,149 (which was then the
condition for establishing a bank), which was subsequently divided into 4,565 founders' shares. On 25
January 1990 the Bank received from the Yugoslav National Bank the Decision granting full banking licence
and had it registered at the court on 18 July 1990. On 4 May 1990 the Bank changed its name from Banka
male privrede d.d. Zagreb into Croatia banka male privrede d.d. Zagreb, (abbreviated: "Croatia banka d.d.
Zagreb"), and on 21 June 1995 it changed its name into Croatia banka d.d. Zagreb.

As a result of difficulties faced by the Bank, a procedure to rehabilitate the Bank was initiated in 1999 and,
pursuant to Article 15(1), Article 16(1) and Article 17(1) of the Bank Rehabilitation and Restructuring Act
(Croatian Official Gazette no 44/94) and Point VII of the Decision of the Government of the Republic of
Croatia on the rehabilitation and restructuring of Croatia banka d.d. Zagreb of 27 September 1999 and the
Decision of the Government of the Republic of Croatia on amendments to the Decision on rehabilitation
and restructuring of Croatia banka d.d. Zagreb of 24 May 2000, the General Assembly of Croatia banka d.d.
adopted on 13 September 2000 a Decision on issuing new replacement shares in the amount of HRK 204.6
million and a Decision on amendments to the Statute of Croatia banka d.d., which formally ended the
process of the Bank’s rehabilitation. The DAB contributed capital to the Bank in the amount of the
replacement shares, and the Bank continued to operate as a Croatian public limited company (Croatian:
‘dionic¢ko drustvo') fully owned by the State.
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" - 1
Information on economic trends and forecasts

Economic activity continued to grow steadily in the third quarter of 2017, with the highest growth in
exports of goods, services and personal consumption. Real GDP could rise in 2017 by 3.1% and the growth
rate in 2018 could be lower due to a slower personal consumption growth of 2.9%. It is estimated that the
unemployment rate could fall to around 10% in 2018.

Average annual consumer price inflation was 1.2% in 2017, mostly as a result of rising food and energy

prices. With the growth of import prices and slight revival of domestic inflationary pressures, considering
that the cyclical position of the domestic economy will change, continued acceleration of inflation is
expected during 2018, but the inflation rate could remain low or lower than the long -term average. The
deficit and general government debt could continue to decline in 2017, according to the Ministry of Finance
forecast. Monetary policy will continue to support economic growth by maintaining its expansionary
character by supporting the high liquidity of the monetary system and maintaining the stability of the kuna
against euro.

Labour market

On the labour market, favourable trends are expected and the projected administrative unemployment rate
is 12.4% for 2017, or 11.3% for 2018. Growth in the number of employed persons is expected, as well as
intensification of the growth of real net wages due to the Government's decision to increase salaries for
public and civil servants, more favorable changes to the law on income taxation and lower private sector
wage growth.

Prices

Average annual inflation in consumer prices is 1.2% in 2017, while inflation in the year 2018 may slightly
increase to 1.6%. This is expected as a result of import price pressures and continued growth in unit labor
costs.

External sector

The trend of reducing external imbalances which has been positive since 2012, continues to decline. The
surplus in the current account in 2017 is expected to increase further, mainly as a result of the unfavourable
impact of Agrokor’s crisis on the commercial banks’ profits. On the other hand, reduction of surplus in the
current account can be expected during 2018, which will mostly be the result of foreign trade deficit growth
due to further recovery of domestic economic activity and strengthening of import demand. According to
projections, the share of general government debt in GDP will continue to fallin 2017 and 2018.

Current and capital account of balance of payments

in the year 2017, there was still a noticeable surplus in the current and capital account. In the third quarter
of 2017, it rose significantly in relation to the same period last year, not only because of the exceptionally
good tourist season, whose movements temporarily overcame the worsening of foreign exchange
shortages, but also because of the lower deficit on the primary income account associated with the
situation in Agrokor. That completely explains the improvement of the total surplus on current and capital
account in the previous part of the year, when the surplus growth in the exchange of services was
accompanied by a stronger increase in trade shortages. The on current and capital account in the third
quarter of 2017, if cumulative gains over the last year were observed, amounted to 4.7% of GDP (or 3.7% of
GDP excluding Agrokor's effect on bank profits).

“Macroeconomic trends and forecast, CNB, December 2017
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Information on economic trends and forecasts {(continued)
Monetary policy

The Croatian National Bank has continued to implement expansive monetary policy by supporting the high
liquidity of the monetary system. Due to the appreciation pressures on domestic currency, the CNB bought
from the banks EUR 1.6 billion and from the Ministry of Finance EUR 29.4 billion in 2017. In addition The
CNB continued to support high kuna liquidity in the monetary system. After the structured reverse repo
auctions in November 2017 amounted to HRK 0.5 billion {with an interest rate of 1.2 percent}, the balance
of total assets invested by structural repo operations amounts to HRK 1.3 billion.

The average surplus of HRK liquidity reached the level of 14.8 biilion in the first eleven months of 2017,
primarily as a result of the creation of primary money by buying foreign currency from banks. The average
weighted overnight interbank borrowing rate was 0.07 percent in 2017 (0.41 percent in 2016). The average
nominal exchange rate of HRK against EUR was 1.0 percent lower in the first eleven months of 2017
compared to the same period last year.

The CNB will continue to pursue a stable exchange rate policy against the euro and support the high
liquidity of the monetary system through structural and regular repo operations, while foreign exchange
interventions will be used depending on exchange rate pressures.

Fiscal policy

In June 2017, the Council of the European Union confirmed Croatia's exit from the excessive deficit
procedure as the general government deficit fell to 0.8% of GDP in 2016, and in the medium term it is
expected to continue to reduce the general government debt at an appropriate pace.

Fiscal data (expressed in ESA 2010 methodology) show a significant reduction of the general government
deficit in the first half of 2017, based on annual level.

The general government deficit in the first six months of 2017 was HRK 1.1 billion, i.e.HRK 2.7 billion less
than in the same period last year.

According to MoF data, favourable developments in public finances continued in the third quarter of 2017.
Under the influence of positive achievements in the previous part of the year, the Government of the
Republic of Croatia in November adopted amendments to the state budget and budget plans of budget
users reducing the planned general government deficit. According to new projections, the general
government deficit according to the ESA 2010 methodology could amount to 0.6% of GDP in 2017, which is
0.7 basis points less than the previous expectations. Therefore, the annual nominal deficit of the general
government could continue to fall, as started in 2014.
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Business description

The Bank’s activities include all types of deposit and loan operations for legal and natural persons, domestic
and foreign payments, issuing guarantees, avals and other forms of guarantees, purchase and sale of
securities and other banking activities.

The Bank is fully {100%) owned by the state and ranked by assets (HRK 2.5 billion) as the 13" of a total of 26
banks. As at 31 December 2017, the Bank has 13 branches and 3 premises.

The Bank's own (regulatory) capital as at 31 December 2017 amounts to HRK 146,181 thousand, and the
regulatory capital adequacy rate is 15.85%.

In 2017 the Bank generated a pre-tax loss in the amount of HRK 31,287 thousand, and the loss after tax
amounts to HRK 30,631 thousand.

The operating profit for the year amounts to HRK 23,328 thousand, the impairment and provisioning
expense amounts to HRK 54,615 thousand.

Total net operating income decreased by 1.7%, while operating expenses decreased by 0.1% compared to

2016 which contributed to a drop in operating profit in 2017. Interest income represents the most
significant share of the total income and amounts to 62.2 percent (HRK 53,077 thousand).

Structure of operating income in 2017

(in thousands of HRK)
Net Interest Income | 53,077
Net Commission
5,700
Income
Other Income | 26,621
% % % % % %
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At the end of 2017 the Bank's assets amount to HRK 2,501,460 thousand, HRK 608,571 thousand less than
at the end of 2016. Loans and receivables from customers represent the largest share (46 percent),
followed by financial assets {36 percent) and cash and receivables from the Croatian Nationai Bank and
other banks (14 percent).

Assets structure

3.200

2.800 H Property amd equipment,
; 2.400 intangible assets and other assets
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S 1600
T 1.200 Financial assets
c
. 800 .
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17%

46% .
36% 51% 28%

At 31 December 2017, the balance of total gross loans to customers was HRK 1,406,498 thousand, which is
23.2 percent less than in 2016 mainly due to reduced public sector loans. Loans to tegal persons represent
71 percent of the total loans to customers, and loans to individuals (including sole traders) account for 29
percent.

Structure and movement in loans
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Term deposits represent the largest portion of liabilities and account for 69 percent, followed by demand
deposits which represent 17 percent.

Liabilities structure

3.200
2.800 j-
< _
= 2.400 : M Demand deposits
; 2.000 ¥ el Term deposits
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1.200 et e ® Other liabilitites
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: .ty fo
2017 2016
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7% 9%
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Total deposits at the end of 2017 amounted to 2.1 billion, which presents a decrease compared to the end
of 2016 by 17.3 percent, wherein retail deposits increased by 8.9 percent, and corporate deposits
decreased by 40.4 percent.

As regards the structure of total deposits, term deposits (80 percent) prevail by far over demand deposits
(20 percent). Costumers term deposits decreased by 19 percent, and their share in total deposits is lower
for 2 pp. In 2017 demand deposits record decrease by 9.8 percent.

Structure and movement in deposits
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Retail customer operations

2017 was the year in which more attention was paid to deposit activity, due to the overall consolidation of
the liquidity structure at the level of the entire Bank. The biggest impact was the closure of the two big
branches (Rijeka and Zadar), which led to a significant level of decrease in the deposits of individuals over a
period of several months. It has been suggested that the Bank will reduce excessive and unnecessary
liquidity reserves, which resulted in significant reduction of interest costs.

Lending with reduced intensity due to capital constraints, as well as due to the closure of two large
subsidiaries, was continued in 2017, which further influenced the reduction of placements.

Despite the decline in the business netwaork, there has been no reduction in the number of current accounts
although the closure effects on this issue will be visible in 2018.

Operations with legal persons

Deposits from legal persons {excluding deposits from other banks) account for 16 percent of the Bank's
total deposits. They fell by 40,4 percent from the end of 2016 and amount to HRK 335,610 thousand. Of
that balance, demand deposits amount to HRK 223,777 thousand, and term deposits amount to HRK
111,833 thousand. The decrease was mostly due to several larger deposits being strategically released for
high interest expense.

At the end of 2017, the total gross portfolio of loans to legal persons amounted to HRK 993,350 thousand,
which is HRK 426,649 thousand less than at the end of 2016. The same applies to public sector lending. The
loans issued to public sector entities were duly repaid in 2017 and were not reprogrammed. Given a lower
number of public tendered, the general decline of the public-sector loan demand and the very low interest
rates offered to the sector by competitors.

As part of its 2017 plan for corporate customers, the Bank intended to preserve its existing good customers
as well as continuously improve the quality of its business processes in cooperation with other
organizational units of the Bank, with an emphasis on the lending process, which the Bank succeeded in the
most part. The plan is to continue the efforts in 2018. The total number of customers remained more or less
the same, compared with previous year, as well as the non-interest income. Fee income decreased, mainly
on issued guarantees and letters of credit..

Treasury operations

The Bank maintains its liquidity using available liquid instruments denominated in HRK and foreign
currencies (balances on accounts with the Bank, securities, inter-bank loans, repo loans). A more
sophisticated instrument used by the Bank to manage its liquidity position is an FX swap. Throughout the
year 2017 the Bank maintained a high liquidity as well as a balanced foreign exchange position on all
currencies.

In 2017 the securities portfolio (bonds and treasury bills) increased by 4.8 percent (of which bonds by 24.4
percent, but the T-bill portfolio decreased by 7.1 percent). As a result and despite the unfavourable
movements on the market and the decrease in active interest rates, the actual interest income and trading
results were on budget.

Regarding the quality of the business processes, a key change was creating an internal application for the
planning of inflows and outflows in the Business Network. Further progress was made in the area of
collecting data relevant for liquidity and quality of Assets Liability Committee reports.

10
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Investment banking

The Bank has obtained all permits from the Croatian National Bank and the Croatian Financial Services
Supervisory Agency for providing investment services and activities and has achieved all prerequisites for
providing investment services. In the field of investment banking, the Bank offers to its clients brokerage
services, custody services for customers' financial assets, margin loan for purchases of financial instruments,
as well as general-purpose S-loans against financial instruments placed into the Bank's custody.

Despite the unfavourable situation on the Croatian financial market, which features low transaction
volumes and meagre investments, the Bank achieved a significant growth in the investment banking
segment. Over the past one-year period, its customer base has grown considerably, and the portfolio of its
investment banking customers has multiplied. As a result, the Bank reported a considerable increase in
interest income, which supports the sustainability and profitability of this segment in the long run.

Internal control system and internal audit

The internal control system at the Bank’s level has been set up by means of internal acts that vertically and
horizontally divide responsibilities among the Bank’s organizational units.

The internal control system at the Bank has been implemented as a set of established processes and
procedures established for the purpose of adequate risk control, monitoring the efficiency and
effectiveness of the Bank’s operations, reliability of its financial and other information, and regulatory
compliance, including compliance with internai acts, standards and codes, to ensure the stability of the
Bank's operations.

Internal audit

The internal audit function has been set up as a separate organizational unit that is functionally and
organizationally independent of activities it audits as well as of other organizational units of the Bank.

The Annual Audit Plan is based on documented risk assessments and contains all the relevant elements
from the Decision on the internal control system and internal acts. The annual work plan of the internal
audit is approved by the Bank’s Management Board based on a prior consent of the Audit Committee
and/or the Supervisory Board.

Internal audit reports are delivered to all members of the Management Board, persons responsible for the
Bank’s organizational part audited and the Audit Committee.

The Internal Audit also prepares its activity reports and submits them to the Management Board and the

Audit Committee on a quarterly basis, to the Supervisory Board semi-annually, as well as the annual report
for the CNB.

11
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implementation of the Corporate Governance Code

Pursuant to the provisions of Article 272 of the Companies Act, the Management Board of Croatia bank d.d.
Zagreb hereby declares that the Bank implements the Corporate Governance Positions of the Croatian
National Bank for Banks on a voluntary basis.

in 2017, the Bank continuously followed and applied the recommendations determined in the CNB’s
Positions, disclosing all information the disclosure of which is provided by positive regulations as well as
making disclosures that are in the interest of the Bank’s owners and clients.

Pursuant to the corporate governance requirements and in line with the provisions of the Companies Act,
the Supervisory Board performs the internal oversight by regular controls of submitted reports. Members
of the Supervisory Board regularly obtain detailed information on the Bank’s management and operations.
At the Supervisory Board meetings, all issues from the Board's area of responsibilities are discussed and
decided on.

The Bank keeps business and other records and business documentation, prepares accounting documents,
realistically assesses assets and liabilities, prepares financial statements and other reports in accordance
with accounting regulations and standards and the applicable legislation.

Corporate governance at the Bank is implemented not only by meeting regulatory requirements, but it also
derives from the culture of corporate and personal integrity of the management and employees. Main
features of the implemented internal oversight and risk management relevant for financial reporting are
described further below.

Nominees for the president and members of the Bank’s Management Board must meet all requirements
prescribed by legislation governing banking operations and other relevant regulations. Once the Croatian
National Bank approves the nominees, the Supervisory Board appoints the president and members of the
Management Board with a mandate of up to four years. The powers of the Bank's Management Board are
defined by law and the Statute. The division of the respective responsibilities of the Management Board
and its president are determined in a separate decision adopted with the consent of the Supervisory Board.

Decisions on amendments to the Statute are adopted at the Bank’s General Assembly, in line with the Act
and the Statute.

For the purpose of protecting the interests of the owners, clients, employees and all other stakeholders,
Croatia banka d.d. Zagreb aims to maintain its operations in line with highest corporate governance
standards.

Governance structure of the Bank

In accordance with the Companies Act, the Credit Institutions Act and the Bank’s Statute, the Bank’s
governance structure comprises the Supervisory Board and the Management Board, whose duties and
responsibilities are also regulated by those acts.

Other information

The Bank did not carry out any research and development activities in 2017.

The Bank did not purchase any treasury shares during in 2017.

The Bank does not own other legal entities.

Purchase and sale of financial instruments constitute an integral part of the Bank’s operations and are
described in detail in these financial statements.

Details about the Bank’s financial risk management goals and policies, its exposure to price risk, credit risk,
liquidity risk and other risks are provided in the accompanying financial statements.

12
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RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Pursuant to the Croatian Accounting Law, the Management Board is responsible for ensuring that financial
statements are prepared for each financial year in accordance with local accounting requirements for
banks, to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs and results of Croatia banka d.d. ("Bank”) for that
period.

The Management Board has a reasonable expectation that the Bank has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, the Management Board continues to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

In preparing those financial statements, the responsibilities of the Management Board include ensuring
that:

° suitable accounting policies are selected and then applied consistently;

° judgements and estimates are reasonable and prudent;

° applicable accounting standards are followed, subject to any material departures disclosed
and explained in the financial statements; and

° the financial statements are prepared on the gaing concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume
that the Bank will continue in business.

The Management Board is responsible for keeping proper accounting records, which disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Bank and must also ensure that the financial
statements comply with the Croatian Accounting Law (Official Gazette no. 78/15, 134/15 and 120/16). The
Management Board is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Bank and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Management Board is responsible for preparation and content of the annual report in accordance with
the article 19 of the Accounting Act (Official Gazette 78/15, 134/15 and 120/16), and also for other
regulatory supplementary reports.

For and on behalf of the Management Board

26 April 2018

Branka Grabovac

Meppber of the Management Board 4
/Za.;wée, R (T

ement Board
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Shareholders of Croatia banka d.d.

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Croatia banka d.d. (the Bank), which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017, the statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2017, and its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with law requirements for accounting for banks in Republic
of Croatia.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Audit Act and International Standards on Auditing (ISAs).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Bank in accordance
with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (IESBA Code) and we have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

The company was registered at Zagreb Commercial Court: MBS 030022053; paid-in initial capital: Kn 44,900.00; Board Members: Branislav Vrtaénik, Marina TonZetic,
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RZBHHR2X IBAN: HR1024840081100240905.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT (continued)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Key Audit Matter Impairment losses on loans to customers

Please refer to Note 3 for accounting policies and relevant
estimates for impairment losses on Jloans to customers and
Notes 7 and 21 for more details on key audit matter

Impairment of loans to customers is considered a matter of most significance, as the assessment
process is complex and requires significant management judgment regarding assumptions, which are
used when estimating recoverability of loans.

Valuation and measurement of loans depend on the credit risk associated with the borrower. When
there is objective evidence that a loan might not be recovered in full or in accordance with the
contractual terms, i.e. when there is significant doubt as to the payment of interest or repayment of
principal or evidence of breach of the contractual terms, the credit risk and the value of such loan is
assessed individually. Management applies judgment to assess the inputs they find relevant for the
calculation of impairment losses including, but not limited to the, financial position of the borrower,
value of the collateral and the projected realization date, the expected cash flows and the current
local and global economic conditions.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

During the audit we gained understanding of the Bank's provisioning process and considered the
adequacy of the Bank's policies, procedures, employees' responsibilities and controls over the process.
We applied our understanding while designing our procedures which addressed the risks associated
with provisions for impairment losses on loans.

Our audit procedures were focused on and included the following:

Operating effectiveness of controls

We tested design and implementation of the controls, which provided us with the basis for further
performance of our detailed audit procedures in the planned nature, timing and extent.

Individually impaired loans

In determining the sample for our substantive procedures we analyzed the population of loans to
customers in order to identify our focus areas. We selected a sample of loans considering, but not
limiting to, credit risk groups and changes between individual groups, number of days past due and
the probability of default.

We performed tests of details on the selected sample to assess the appropriateness of loan
classification and to identify if any impairment indicators exist that would suggest that some
performing loans should be designated as non-performing and need recognizing a specific provision
in accordance with the CNB’s Decision and in accordance with statutory accounting requirements for
banks in Croatia.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Key Audit Matter Impairment losses on loans to customers (continued)
(continued)

Impairment of loans to customers is considered a matter of most significance, as the assessment
process is complex and requires significant management judgment regarding assumptions which are
used when estimating recoverability of loans.

Valuation and measurement of loans depend on the credit risk associated with the borrower. When
there is objective evidence that a loan might not be recovered in full or in accordance with the
contractual terms, i.e. when there is significant doubt as to the payment of interest or repayment of
principal or evidence of breach of the contractual terms, the credit risk and the value of such loan is
assessed individually. Management applies judgment to assess the inputs they find relevant for the
calculation of impairment losses including, but not limited to the, financial position of the borrower,
value of the collateral and the projected realization date, the expected cash flows and the current
local and global economic conditions.

The Bank recognizes provisions for both collective and specific (individual) impairment losses on loans,
in accordance with the statutory accounting requirements for banks in Croatia and the Croatian
National Bank’s Decision on the classification of placements and off-balance sheet liabilities of credit
institutions (Official Gazette no. 41/14, 28/17) (the CNB’s Decision).

Furthermore, we assessed the appropriateness of specific provision calculation and management’s
assumptions regarding the recoverability of the loans, value of the collateral and projected loan
repayments and recovery rates.

We analysed the financial position of the customers and inspected situations of potential breaches of
contracts and/or changes of original terms and conditions of the contract. We considered the impact
of the current local and global economic conditions, the asset price trends and other factors that may
affect the recoverability of the sampled loans.

Collectively impaired loans

When evaluating the overall adequacy and calculation of the collective impairment level, we assessed
the appropriateness of the Bank’s provisioning process, applied methodology and parameters used in
the calculation.

We recalculated provision for collectively impaired loans to assess whether the Bank adheres to the
minimum collective impairment of 1.00% of the total exposure for performing loans (class A under
the CNB Decision).
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Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. With respect to the Management Report on pages 9 to 19 and the Corporate Governance
Statement, which are included in the Annual Report, we have also performed the procedures prescribed
by the Accounting Act. These procedures include examination of whether the Management Report and
Corporate Governance Statement include required disclosures as set out in the Articles 21 and 22 of the
Accounting Act and whether the Corporate Governance Statement includes the information specified in
the Article 22 of the Accounting Act.

Based on the procedures performed during our audit, to the extent we are able to assess it, we report
that:

1. Information included in the other information is, in all material respects, consistent with the
attached financial statements.

2. Management Report has been prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the Article
21 of the Accounting Act.

3. Corporate Governance Statement has been prepared, in all material aspects, in accordance with
the Article 22, paragraph 1, items 3 and 4 of the Accounting Act, and includes also the
information from the Article 22, paragraph 1, point 2, 5, 6 and 7.

Based on the knowledge and understanding of the Bank and its environment, which we gained during
our audit of the financial statements, we have not identified material misstatements in the other

information.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with IFRSs and for such internal control as Management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud

or error.
In preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the Bank’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless Management either intends to liquidate the Bank or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Bank’s financial reporting process.
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Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank's internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by Management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of Management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Bank
to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We were appointed as the statutory auditor of the Bank by the Bank’s General Assembly on 7 April 2017
to perform audit of accompanying financial statements. Our total uninterrupted engagement has lasted
5 years and covers period from 31 December 2013 to 31 December 2017.

We confirm that:

e our audit opinion on the accompanying financial statements is consistent with the additional
report issued to the Audit Committee of the Bank on 26 April 2018 in accordance with the Article
11 of Regulation (EU) No. 537/2014 of the European Parliament and the Council;

s no prohibited non-audit services referred to in the Article 5(1) of Regulation (EU) No. 537/2014
of the European Parliament and the Council were provided.

There are no services, in addition to the statutory audit, which we provided to the Bank and its controlled
undertakings, and which have not been disclosed in the Annual Report.

Pursuant to the Decision of the Croatian National Bank on the Structure and Content of Annual Financial
Statements of Banks (Official Gazette No. 30/17 and 44/17, hereinafter: “the Decision”), the Bank’s
management has prepared the forms, as presented in the Appendix to these financial statements on
pages 98 to 113, which comprise the Balance sheet as of 31 December 2017, the profit and loss account,
the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flow for the year then ended, as well as
the reconciliation to the financial statements.

These forms and the accompanying reconciliation to the financial statements are the responsibility of
the Bank’s Management Board, and do not represent components of the financial statements prepared
in accordance with statutory accounting requirements for banks in Croatia, which are set out on pages
20 to 97, but rather a requirement specified by the Decision. The financial information provided in those
forms has been derived from the financial statements of the Bank.

President of the Board and Certified auditor

Deloitte d.o.o.

27 April 2018
Radnicka cesta 80,
10 000 Zagreb,

Croatia



CROATIA BANKA d.d.
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2017

B ) B . Notes 2017 2016
Interest income 5 98,156 131,425
Interest expense 6 (39,503) (69,569)
Net interest income 58,653 61,856
Fee and commission income 7 10,453 12,056
Fee and commission expense 8 (4,753) (4,360)
Net fee and commission income 5,700 7,696
Net financial gains 9 15,184 7,751
Net income from exchange differences 10 2,743 3,219
Other operating income 11 8,694 6,361
Total other income 26,621 17,331
Other operating expenses 12 (67,646) (62,112)
Impairment losses and provisions 13 (54,615) (22,107)
Total other expenses (122,261) (84,219)
Profit before taxation (31,287) 2,664
Income tax 14 656 (1,026)
Profit/(loss) for the year a (30,631) 1,638
Other comprehensive income
Beginning balance 5,571 (395)
Items potentially included subsequently in
profit or loss: (6,996) 5,966
Unrealised gains/(losses) from the valuation
of financial assets available for sale (1,814) 7,013
Cumulative loss/(gain) on the sale of
available-for-sale financial assets
transferred to profit or loss (6,717) 275
Deferred tax on financial assets available for
sale 1,535 (1,322)
Closing balance (1,425) 5,571
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/LOSS* (37,627) 7,604
Earnings/(loss) per share 33 (6,45) 035

* Total comprehensive income is attributable to the owners

The significant accounting policies and other notes on pages 24 to 97 form an integral part of these financial

statements.
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CROATIA BANKA d.d.
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
At 31 December 2017

31 December

31 December

- - - Notes 2017 2016
ASSETS
Cash 15 176,668 276,808
Receivables from the Croatian National Bank 16 149,557 191,709
Placements with banks 17 23,092 53,334
Financial assets available for sale 18 887,053 833,773
Financial assets held to maturity 19 - 50,647
Loans and advances to customers 20 1,153,021 1,590,643
Investment property 21 33,630 33,702
Property and equipment 22 6,280 13,427
Intangible assets 22 4,187 4,926
Foreclosed assets 23 15,397 23,389
Non-current assets held for sale 24 5,280
Deferred tax assets 14 4,089 1,898
Other assets 25 32,562 35,759
Total assets 2,490,816 3,110,015
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Liabilities to banks 26 62,173 92,095
Demand deposits 27 411,882 471,935
Term depasits 28 1,682,228 2,044,562
Borrowings 29 163,492 292,003
Other liabilities 30 10,663 9,109
Provisions 31 8,370 10,676
Total liabilities 2,338,808 2,920,380
EQUITY
Share capital 31 474,600 474,600
Accumulated losses (321,167) (290,536)
Reserves (1,425) 5,571
Total equity 152,008 189,635
Total liabilities and equity 2,490,816 3,110,015

The significant accounting policies and other notes on pages 24 to 97 form an integral part of these financial

statements.

21



CROATIA BANKA d.d.
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year 2017
Share capital Accumulated
B 3 losses Reserves Total
Balance at 1 January 2016 474,600 (292,174) | i.ﬁs) 1_82,031

Changes in equity in 2015

Unrealised change in fair

value of available-for-sale - - 7,013 7,013
financial assets

Cumulative gains on the

sale of available-for-sale

. . 275 275
financial assets transferred
to profit or loss

Deferred.tax o.n available- i i (1,322) (1,322)
for-sale financial assets

Net /os.s recognised directly 5.966 5,966
in equity

Profit for the year - 1,638 - 1,638
Baancefet3iDecembel 474,600 (290,536) 5,571 189,635
2016

Balance at 1 January 2017 474,600 (290,536) 5,571 189,635

Changes in equity in 2016

Unrealized change in fair

value of available-for-sale - -

financial assets (1,814) (1,814)
Cumulative gains on the

sale of available-for-sale

financial assets transferred

to profit or loss (6,717) (6,717)
Deferred tax on available-

for-sale financial assets i i 1,535 1,535
Net income recognised

directly in equity ) ) (6,996) (6,996)
Profit for the year - (30,631) - (30,631}

474,600 (321,167) (1,425) 152,008

Balance at 31 December
2017

The significant accounting policies and other notes on pages 24 to 97 form an integral part of these financial
statements.
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CROATIA BANKA d.d.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year 2017

2017 2016
NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation (31,287) 2,664
Adjustment to net cash from operating activities
Impairment allowance on loans and other assets {net) (Note 13} 54,196 17,139
Reversal of provisions for contingent liabilities (net) (Note 13) (423) (102)
Legal cases provisions {net) (Note 13) 1,307 5,282
Other provisions {net) (Note 30) 56 42
Gains on disposal of available-for-sale and held to maturity financial assets
(Note 9) (15,184) {7,705)
Gains on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Note 9) - (46)
Amortization and depreciation (Note 22) 3,425 3,470
Foreign exchange differences on translation (Note 10) (2,743) (3.219)
Gains on the sale of foreclosed assets (Note 11) (4,073) (1,593)
Write-offs of tangible assets 15 2,128
Changes in assets and liabilities from operating activities
Decrease in receivables from the Croatian National Bank 42,577 34,776
Decrease in loans and advances to customers 415,377 284,781
Decrease/(increase) in other assets 13 (7,820)
Decrease in liabilities to banks (29,922) (17,808)
Decrease in a vista deposits (60,053) (1,341)
(Decrease)/increase in term deposits (360,675) 16,543
Decrease in other liabilities - (1,692) (3,392)
Net cash flow from operating activities 10,914 323,799
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of financial assets available for sale (956,141) (921,220)
Sale of financial assets available for sale 917,993 778,896
Purchase/(sale) of financial assets held to maturity 15,520 (2,087)
Purchase of property, equipment and intangible assets (1,491) (4,067)
Proceeds from the sale of property 6,717 2,462
Net cash from investing activities {17,402) (146,016)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayments of borrowings, net (128,511) (723)
Net cash flow from financing activities o (128,511) (723)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents - (134,999) 177,060
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year (Note 36) 333,258 152,834
Foreign exchange difference change in cash and cash equivalents 3,161 3,364
_Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year (Note 35) o 201,420 333258

The significant accounting policies and other notes on pages 24 to 97 form an integral part of these financial

statements.
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CROATIA BANKA d.d.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year 2017

1 GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE BANK

Legal framework and activity

Croatia banka d.d. Zagreb (“the Bank”) was registered in the court register as a joint stock company in 1989 under
the registration number 080007370. The headquarters of the Bank are at Roberta Frange$a Mihanovica 9, Zagreb,
Croatia.

The Bank’s activities include all types of deposit and loan operations for legal and natural persons, domestic and
foreign payments, issuing guarantees, avals and other forms of guarantees, purchase and sale of securities and
other banking activities.

The Bank has 13 branches — Branch Zagreb, Branch Bjelovar, Branch Cakovec, Branch Metkovié¢, Branch Osijek,
Branch Pula, Branch PoZega, Branch Slavonski Brod, Branch Split, Branch Vinkovci, Branch Virovitica, Branch
Vukovar, Branch Zupanja, and 3 outlets: Outlet Subideva, Outlet Sky Office, and Outlet Drenovci.

Governance and management

Supervisory Board

The Supervisory Board operates in accordance with the Companies Act, the Credit Institutions Act and the Bank’s
Statute, whereby its main responsibility is the supervision of Bank’s operations and appointment and dismissal of
the president and members of the Management Board. In addition, the Supervisory Board approves the
Management Board’s business policies, financial plans, strategies and policies of risk taking and management,
strategies and procedures for assessing the adequacy of internal capital, acts that establish and ensure adequate
functioning of the internal control system, plans of control functions operations, salary and other benefits policy,
organizational structure of the Bank, and it also decides on other issues as determined by law or the Bank’s
internal acts.

The Supervisory Board has four members that are elected and appointed for a period of four years.
Supervisory Board members in the beginning of 2018:

Maruska Vizek, President

Josip Lozanci¢, Deputy President
Zdenka Pogarci¢, Member

Ana Michieli Pavuna, Member

Supervisory Board members in 2017

From 1 January to 24 January 2017
Maruska Vizek, President

Josip Lozandi¢, Deputy President
Branka Grabovac, Member

From 25 January to 31 Deceember 2017
Maruska Vizek, President

Josip Lozanci¢, Deputy President

Branka Grabovac, Member

Zdenka Pogarci¢, Member

Ana Michieli Pavuna, Member
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CROATIA BANKA d.d.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year 2017 (continued)

Supervisory Board members in 2016:

From 1 January to 7 May 2016
Maruska Vizek, President

Josip Lozanci¢, Deputy President
Branka Grabovac, Member

From 8 to 30 May 2016
Josip Lozandi¢, Deputy President

From 31 May to 6 June 2016
Josip Lozancic, Deputy President
Maruska Vizek, Member

Branka Grabovac, Member

From 7 June to 30 November 2016,
Maruska Vizek, President

Josip Lozanci¢, Deputy President
Branka Grabovac, Member

From 1 to 19 December 2016,
Josip Lozanci¢, Deputy President

From 20 to 27 December 2016
Josip Lozandi¢, Deputy President
Maruska Vizek, Member

Branka Grabovac, Member

From 28 to 31 December 2016
Maruska Vizek, President

Josip Lozanci¢, Deputy President
Branka Grabovac, Member




CROATIA BANKA d.d.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year 2017 (continued)

1 GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE BANK [continued}
Management Board

Competences, duties and responsibilities of the Bank’s Management Board in managing the operations
and representing the Bank are determined by the Companies Act, the Credit Institutions Act, the Statute
and the Rules of Procedure of the Bank’s Management Board.

Management Board manages its business and manages its assets, and it has the responsibility and power
to take any action and make any decision necessary for the successful management of the Bank. In the
managing of business operations Management Board in particular is responsible for ensuring that the
Bank operates in accordance with the rules on risk management in accordance with the Credit
Institutions Act and other legislation and internally set regulations and laws; approving and regularly
reviewing risk management strategies and policies, including managing risks that arise from the
macroeconomic environment in which the Bank operates, and the state of the business cycle of the
Bank; ensuring systematic monitoring, assessment and the strategy for maintaining or reaching the
adequate amount of capital in relation to risks to which the Bank is exposed in its operations; ensuring
functioning of the internal controis system for all areas of the Bank’s operations; ensuring unobstructed
internal audit; ensuring that the Bank keeps business and other records and business documentation,
prepares accounting documents, realistically estimates assets and liabilities, prepares financial and other
reports in accordance with accounting regulations and standards and the Credit Institutions Act and
other regulations adopted on the basis of law; ensuring that the Bank reports and informs the Croatian
National Bank in line with the Credit Institutions Act and other regulations adopted on the basis of law;
and ensuring the implementation of measures ordered by the Croatian National Bank.

The Bank’s Management Board consists of at least two to maximum three members, one of which is
appointed as the President of the Management Board. The President of the Management Board
represents the Bank solely and independently, and a member of the Management Board represents the
Bank jointly with another member of the Management Board.

The Bank’s Management Board is appointed by the Supervisory Board for a period of not more than four
years, with the option of reappointment.

The Members of the Board from the Beginning of the 2018:

Branka Grabovac- Member (from 3 April 2018)

Zoran Saboli¢-Member (from 1 February 2018)

Branka Grabovac- President (from 2 January 2018 to 2 April 2018)

Ivan Sverko- Member {from 1 January to 30 January 2018)

The Members of the Board during the 2017 were as follows:
Mladen Duliba- President (until 31 December 2017)

lvan Sverko- Member (until 31 December 2017)

The Members of the Board during the 2016 were as follows:
Mladen Duliba — President

lvan Sverko — Member
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year 2017 (continued)

1. GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE BANK (continued)

Organisation chart
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CROATIA BANKA d.d.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year 2017 (continued)

2. GOING CONCERN

Capital management

For several years the Bank had not managed to reach operating profit, which is why the Bank's share
capital was increased on several occasions, the most recent in the amount of HRK 200 million taking
place in October 2012 by converting into equity bonds representing in aggregate a hybrid instrument, i.e.
supplementary capital in the amount of HRK 70 million, and contributing HRK 130 million in cash.

Similar to the previous year, in 2017 the Bank's lending activities continued to be focused on extending
loans to the government and state-owned companies guaranteed by the Republic of Croatia that, under
the applicable regulations, are not subject to capital requirements and still bring a satisfactory level of
interest income. Regarding the sources of funds, The Bank achieved a fall in total deposits {in particular
deposits of individuals) primarily as a result of the closure of two subsidiaries. Therefore, the Bank
reduced excessive and unnecessary liquidity reserves, which resulted in significant reduction of interest
costs. The Bank's business plan by 2020 is based on the currently available capital, planning to achieve
profitable business operations in accordance with all legal regulations. If necessary for, any reason, the
Bank wiil aiso consider options for capital increase.

Total capital ratio at 31 December 2017 is 15.85 percent (2016: 16.81 percent).

3. BASIS FOR THE PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of compliance

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the legal requirements applicable to
accounting for banks in the Republic of Croatia. The Bank's operations are subject to the Credit
Institutions Act under which the Bank's financial reporting is regulated by the Croatian National Bank
(“the CNB”) as the central institution overseeing the banking system in Croatia. These financial
statements are prepared in accordance with the above-mentioned banking regulations.

The accounting regulations of the CNB are based on International Financial Reporting Standards {“IFRS”),
but differ from them, both in terms of presentation and in terms of recognition and measurement.

The principal differences between the accounting regulations of the CNB and the recognition and
measurement requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards are as follows:

e The CNB requires from banks to recognise in their income statements losses on impairment of
assets not identified as impaired (including those bearing the Central Government Risk) at
prescribed rates (with the exception of financial assets at fair value through profit or toss and
assets available for sale). The portfolio-based provisions are presented on the Bank's balance
sheet in accordance with the CNB requirements which include the requirement to recognise the
related expense within impairment losses for the year.

e The Bank recognises impairment losses on loans and advances to customer by discounting the
future expected cash flows using the original effective interest rate of the instrument, in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards. The CNB requires the amortisation
of the discount to be presented in the statement of comprehensive income as a change in
impairment losses on loans and advances to customer instead of including them in interest
income as required under IFRSs.

e Additionally, the CNB prescribes minimum levels of impairment losses against certain specifically
identified impaired exposures, which may differ from the impairment loss required to be
recognised in accordance with IFRSs.
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CROATIA BANKA d.d.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year 2017 (continued)

3. BASIS FOR THE PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

e The CNB prescribes minimum provisions for legal actions initiated against the Bank to be setat 1
percent of the total claim for individual claims exceeding 0.1 percent of the Bank’s assets based
on the audited prior-year financial statements.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements are prepared on the fair value basis for financial assets available for sale and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, except those for which a reliable measure of fair value
is not available. Other financial assets and liabilities, and non-financial assets and liabilities are carried at
amortised or historical cost.

Use of estimates and judgements

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of commitments and contingencies at the financial statements date, as well as amounts of
income and expense for the period. The estimates and underlying assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the judgements about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from those
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a regular basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period or in the period of revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The Bank monitors the creditworthiness of its customers on an ongoing basis. On-balance sheet and off-
balance sheet credit risk exposures are reviewed for impairment on a quarterly basis. Impairment losses
are generally charged to the carrying amount of loans and receivables issued to legal persons and
individuals and as provisions for risk and charges arising from off-balance sheet exposures to customers,
which mostly take on the form of approved, but not utilised loans, guarantees and letters of credit. In
addition to individually identified impairment losses, the Bank monitors and recognises, on an ongoing-
basis, impairment losses that are known to exist at the financial statements date, but have not been
separately identified. In assessing unidentified impairment losses on a portfolio basis, the Bank seeks to
collect sufficient reliable information about appropriate loss rates, based on its historical experience,
adjusted to reflect the current circumstances and the period in which the loss is identified. The Bank has
recognised a general provision of 1 percent which, pursuant to the CNB regulations, applies to all credit
risk exposures other than those measured at fair value, including off-balance sheet credit risk exposures
and the central government risk.

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Croatian kunas (HRK), which is the primary currency of the
economic environment in which the Bank operates {its functional currency). At 31 December 2017, the
official exchange rate of the Croatian kuna against 1 euro was HRK 7.513648 (2016: HRK 7.557787) and
for 1 USD it was HRK 6.269733 (2016: HRK 7.168536).
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CROATIA BANKA d.d.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year 2017 (continued)

3 BASIS FOR THE PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

3.1. Initial application of new amendments to the existing Standards and interpretation effective for current

financial period

The following amendments to the existing standards and new interpretation issued by the International Accounting

Standards Board (IASB) and adopted by the EU are effective for current financial period:

s Amendments to IAS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows” - Disclosure Initiative — adopted by EU on 6 November 2017
(effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017},

e Amendments to IAS 12 “Income Taxes” - Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses — adopted by
EU on 6 November 2017 {effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017).

e Amendments to various standards “Improvements to IFRSs (cycle 2014-2016)" resulting from the annual
improvement project of IFRS (IFRS 1, IFRS 12 and IAS 28) primarily with a view to removing inconsistencies and
clarifying wording — adopted by the EU on 8 February 2018 (amendments to IFRS 12 are to be applied for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017, amendments to IFRS 1 and IAS 28 are to be applied for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 )

The adoption of these amendments to the existing standards has not led to any material changes in the Company’s
financial statements

3.2, Amendments to the existing Standards issued by IASB and adopted by the EU but not yet effective

At the date of authorization of these financial statements the following amendments to the existing standards
issued by IASB and adopted by the EU were in issue but not yet effective:

e {FRS 9 “Financial Instruments” - adopted by the EU on 22 November 2016 (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018},

e Amendments to IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” - Clarifications to IFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers — adopted by the EU on 31 October 2017 (effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2018).

e IFRS 16 “Leases” — adopted by the EU on 31 October 2017 (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019),

e Amendments to IFRS 4 “Insurance Contracts” - Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance
Contracts — adopted by the EU on 3 November 2017 (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018 or when IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” is applied first time)

s Amendments to IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” - Clarifications to IFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers — adopted by the EU on 31 October 2017 {effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2018).
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3 BASIS FOR THE PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

3.2 Amendments to the existing Standards issued by JASB and adopted by the EU but not yet effective
(continued)

° Amendments to various standards “Improvements to IFRSs {(cycle 2014-2016)” resulting from the annual
improvement project of IFRS (IFRS 1, IFRS 12 and 1AS 28) primarily with a view to removing inconsistencies
and clarifying wording — adopted by the EU on 8 February 2018 {amendments to IFRS 1 and IAS 28 are to
be applied for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018)

The Bank has elected not to adopt these new standards and amendments to existing standards in advance of their
effective dates. The Bank anticipates that the adoption of these standards and amendments to existing standards
will have no material impact on the financial statements of the Company in the period of initial application, except
IFRS 9.

33. New standards and amendments to the existing standards issued by IASB but not yet adopted by the EU

At present, IFRS as adopted by the EU do not significantly differ from regulations adopted by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) except for the following new standards, amendments to the existing standards
and new interpretation, which were not endorsed for use in EU as at [date of publication of financial statements]
(the effective dates stated below is for IFRS in full):

e IFRS 14 “Regulatory Deferral Accounts” (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016) -
the European Commission has decided not to launch the endorsement process of this interim standard and to
wait for the final standard,

e IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021),

e Amendments to IFRS 2 “Share-based Payment” - Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment
Transactions (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018),

e Amendments to IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” - Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation {effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019),

e Amendments to [FRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements” and 1AS 28 “Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures” - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an investor and its Associate or Joint Venture and further
amendments (effective date deferred indefinitely until the research project on the equity method has been
concluded),

e Amendments to IAS 19 “Employee Benefits” - Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019),

*  Amendments to IAS 28 “Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures” - Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures {effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019),

e Amendments to IAS 40 “Investment Property” - Transfers of Investment Property {effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018),

s Amendments to various standards “Improvements to IFRSs (cycle 2014-2016)” resulting from the annual
improvement project of IFRS (IFRS 1, IFRS 12 and AS 28) primarily with a view to removing inconsistencies and
clarifying wording - adopted by the EU on 8 February 2018 (amendments to IFRS 12 are to be applied for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 amendments to IFRS 1 and IAS 28 are to be applied for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018,).

e Amendments to various standards due to “Improvements to IFRSs (cycle 2015-2017)" resulting from the
annual improvement project of IFRS (IFRS 3, IFRS 11, IAS 12 and IAS 23) primarily with a view to removing
inconsistencies and clarifying wording (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019),
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3. BASIS FOR THE PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3.3. New standards and amendments to the existing standards issued by IASB but not yet adopted by the EU

At present, IFRS as adopted by the EU do not significantly differ from regulations adopted by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) except for the following new standards, amendments to the existing
standards and new interpretation, which were not endorsed for use in EU as at 27 April 2018.

e |FRIC 22 “Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration” (effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018),

e IFRIC 23 “Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments” {effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019).

The Bank anticipates that the adoption of these new standards, amendments to the existing standards and new
interpretation will have no material impact on the financial statements of the Company in the period of initial
application, except IFRS 9. The impacts of the IFRS 9 are stated below.

3.4. IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

Regulatory provisions

The New International Financial Reporting Standard 9: The Financial Instruments (hereinafter IFRS 9) was
published by the IASB in July 2014 and was adopted by the European Commission in November 2016 by Regulation
(EC) 2067/2016. IFRS 9 is in effect from 1 January 2018 and is replaced by 1AS 39, which by 31 December 2017
regulated the classification and measurement and impairment of financial instruments.

IFRS 9 is divided into three distinct areas: classification and measurement of financial instruments, impairment and

hedge accounting.

Classification and Measurement

According to IFRS 9, financial assets may be classified into three measurement categories: financial assets that are
measured at amortized cost, financial assets that are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income,
and financial assets that are measured at fair value through profit or loss. The measurement categories did not
change in relation to |AS 39.

[FRS 9 introduces the concept of business models that, together with the Solely Payments of Principal and Interest
(SPPI) carried out in the business model of holding for billing, define the category of measurement of each financial
instrument. The SPPI test is conducted for the purpose of checking whether the cash flows reflect only principal
and interest payments on the outstanding principal.

Financial assets can be measured at amortized cost if the financial asset is held in the billing modei and if the SPPI
test passes. Financial assets can be measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if held in the
business model of holding for billing and sale and if the SPP! test passes. Financial assets allocated to other
business models (e.g. equity securities, derivatives, complex financial instruments, ...) are always measured at their
fair value through profit or loss and are not necessarily implemented by the SPPI test for the specified financial
asset.
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3 BASIS FOR THE PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

3.4. IFRS 9 “Financial instruments” {continued)

In addition, for certain non-trading-equity instruments, it is possible, at initial recognition, to choose the
irrevocable measurement option at fair value through other comprehensive income. However, in this case, the
accumulated profit or loss in revaluation reserves, when selling such instruments, is not included in the income
statement. Regarding the classification and valuation of financial liabilities, significant changes are not introduced
in relation to the present standard.

Impairment

For instruments that are valued at amortized cost and fair value through other comprehensive income (for which
no option is available at fair value through other comprehensive income), a model based on the concept of
expected losses is introduced instead of the present "loss incurred" to recognize the losses earlier. IFRS 9
distinguishes 3 stages in which the allocated financial assets may be affected, thus affecting the calculation of
expected credit losses. For financial assets allocated to Stage 1, 12-month expected credit losses that represent a
lifelong loss are considered taking into account the likelihood of non-fulfillment of obligations within the next 12
months from the reporting date. For financial assets allocated to Stage 2, life expectancy credit losses are
calculated on the basis of the likelihood of a non-fulfillment of obligations during the entire life of the financial
asset. For financial assets allocated to Stage 3, life expectancy credit losses are also calculated, but the calculation
method does not differ from the recoverable amount in IAS 39.

Expected loan losses reflect the weighted average of expected loan losses by the scenarios.

Hedge accounting
The Bank does not apply hedge accounting.
Implementation project

Due to significant changes introduced by IFRS 9 on operations, in February 2016, the Bank launched a separate
project whose basic tasks were to identify gaps between the current IFRS 9 requirements and the classification and
measurement area and the impairment area; designing a model! for calculating risk parameters for calculating
expected credit losses and making functional specifications for the appropriate application solution; an analysis of
the quantitative impact of IFRS 9 on the Bank's financial operations and alignment of internal processes and acts of
the Bank.

For this project, the Bank has engaged an external partner.

On 12 December 2017, the European Parliament and the Council issued Regulation (EU) 2017/2395 amending
Regulation (EU) No. 575/2013 with regard to transition arrangements to mitigate the effects of the introduction of
IFRS 9 on regulatory capital and for the treatment of large exposures in the case of certain public sector exposure
that are denominated in the domestic currency of any Member State. The said Regulation provides banks with the
opportunity to reduce the impact on regulatory capital arising from the introduction of IFRS 9 accounting standard
in a transition period of 5 years by gradual inclusion in the CET1 downstream volume of the impact itself. The Bank
has decided not to use the transitional arrangements introduced by the Regulation in the Regulatory Capital

Below is a summary of the main activities undertaken within the IFRS 9 introduction project:

The Bank analyzes the credit portfolio of legal and natural persons and the securities portfolio and conducts a test
to determine whether the cash flows deriving from the financial instrument are solely principal payments and
interest on the solvency principal ("Solely Payments of Principal and Interest” or SPPI test) used a special toal
based on the "decision tree" principle. This analysis has shown that only one contract from the existing loan
portfolio has not passed the SPPI test and will be run by the Bank in a model that is measured at fair value.
Implementation of the SPPI test has shown that the Bank will continue to hedge all portfolio-to-maturity assets
and loans and receivables at amortized cost, and there is no change in this respect in relation to IAS 39.
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3.4. tFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (continued)

implementation project (continued)

An exception is one contract from an existing loan portfolio for which it has been established that meets the
requirements of the SPPI| test and the Bank will measure it at fair value through profit or loss, by establishing that
its net book value reflects the current fair value so that no change will occur. There is no change in measuring
mode for other assets. The provisions on classification of exposures in risk groups and the method of determining
credit losses made by the Croatian National Bank on 22 November 2017 are taken into account. Given the area of
impairment, the criteria for changing the degree of individual exposure and the criteria for determining the
expected credit losses for each level are defined.

Concerning the foregoing, the elements that will be the main guideline for identifying "significant deterioration" of
credit risk from the moment of first entry (2nd stage distribution) are the following: delay times, internal watch list
status, blockade, moratorium, bankruptcy, and restructuring.

As the most important factor of the new approach, there are important data pertaining to future periods, ie the
calculation of expected credit losses and, accordingly, a methodological approach that includes the analysis of set
scenarios for the calculation of the same (ECL). In accordance with the definition of non-recoverable loan (IFRS) 9,
it is equal to the existing accounting standards with several important news to incorporate into estimating
expected life-cycle credit, such as:

e inclusion of future data {expected amounts and deadlines, likelihood of turning to even worse placement

s considering alternative billing scenarios.

Impact on information systems

Significant contribution to the implementation of [FRSs was provided by the IT Support Department which, based
on the technical specification, prepared a calculator for the calculation of expected loan losses, with the help of
which the Risk Management Service manages the process of determining credit losses and changing the level of
exposure level.

Effects of applying IFRS 9

Based on the above, the impact of expected credit losses related to first-time adoption of IFRS 9 on January 1,
2018 is presented below. These effects mainly stem from:

e from the obligation to redefine the fair value of financial assets in the portfolic using the expected loss
model (in lieu of the current loss-making model);

e from the calculation of expected credit losses for fully recoverable placements (Stage 1 and 2), whereby a
portion of the recoverable portfolio is classified as an important factor in "Stage 2." Furthermore, instead
of the fixed 1% of the general reserve calculation, the Bank is now, model, calculated the expected loan

losses.
Effect on net assetson 1
— S o - January 2018.
Stage 1i2 2.774
Reclassification o e S :
_Total 2.774
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A summary of significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of financial statements is set out below.
The accounting policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented in these financial statements
unless stated otherwise.

Where the accounting policies are aligned with accounting principles of International Financial Reporting
Standards (hereinafter IFRS or Standards), the description of the Bank's accounting policies may contain a
reference to certain standards. Unless otherwise stated, these are the standards applicable at 31 December 2017.

4,1 Financial instruments
Classification

The Bank classifies its financial assets into the following categories: loans and receivables, financial assets available
for sale, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and financial assets held to maturity. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the instrument acquired. The management determines the classification of
financial instruments upon initial recognition.

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or other financial
liabilities.

Loans and receivables

This category comprises all non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market.

Financial assets available for sale

This category comprises non-derivative financial assets not classified as loans and receivables, held-to-maturity
investments, or financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets available for sale are intended
to be held for an indefinite period of time, but may be sold in response to liquidity needs or changes in interest
rates, foreign exchange rates, or equity prices.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category comprises two subcategories: financial instruments held for trading and those designated by
management as at fair value through profit or loss at inception. A financial instrument is classified in this category
if it is acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near term, for short-term
profit taking, or if designated as at fair value through profit or loss by management.

Financial instruments held for trading include shares (units) in investment funds.

Financial assets held to maturity

This category comprises non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity
not classified as loans and receivables that the Bank intends and is able to hold to maturity. Included in this
category are certain debt securities.

35



CROATIA BANKA d.d.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year 2017 (continued)

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.1 Financial instruments {continued)

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities include all financial liabilities not designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

Recognition and derecognition

Purchases and sales of financial assets available for sale are recognised on the trade date, i.e. the date on which
the financial instrument is delivered or transferred by the Bank. Loans and receivables, financial assets held to
maturity and financial liabilities at amortized cost are recognised at the settlement date when received or issued.

The Bank derecognises financial instruments (in full or part) when the rights to receive cash flows from a financial
instrument have expired or when it loses control over the contractual rights to the instrument. This occurs when
the Bank has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to another entity or when the rights
are realized, expired or are surrendered. The Bank derecognises a financial liability only when the liability ceases
to exist, i.e. it is discharged, cancelled or expired. If the terms of a financial liability change, the Bank will
derecognise the liability and simultaneously recognise a new financial liability with new terms and conditions.

Realized gains and losses from the sale of financial instruments are determined using the weighted average cost
method.

Initial and subsequent measurement

Available-for-sale financial assets, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity financial assets and liabilities are
recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition or issuance of
financial assets or financial liabilities.

Financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised initially at fair value, with the
transaction costs recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The Bank recognises financial assets available for sale and financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss subsequently at fair value, without any deduction for transaction costs.

Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investments as well as financial liabilities not designated at fair value
through profit or loss are measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate.

Gains and losses

Gains or losses arising from a change in the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets are recognised directly in
the fair value reserve within equity and are disclosed in the statement of changes in equity. Impairment losses,
foreign exchange differences, interest income and amortisation of premium or discount on available-for-sale
monetary assets are recognised in profit or loss. When an asset availabie for sale is sold or otherwise disposed of,
any cumulative gains or losses on the instrument are transferred to profit or loss.

Unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
as well as gains and losses realised on such assets and liabilities when they are sold or otherwise disposed of are
included in profit or loss. Interest earned while holding those instrument is included in interest income, and
dividends are recognised as dividend income and presented in profit or loss.

36



CROATIA BANKA d.d.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year 2017 (continued)

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
4.1 Financial instruments {continued)

Guains and losses (continued)

Gains or losses arising from financial assets and financial liabilities carried at amortized cost are included in the
income statement over the period of amortization. Gains or losses can also be recognised in profit and loss when
the financial instrument is derecognised or impaired.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

Financial instruments carried at fair value are classified into three-level fair value measurements according to the
IFRS fair value hierarchy. Level 1 (based on closing prices on regulated markets), Level 2 (based on valuation
technigues using inputs observable on the market), and Level 3 (fair value determined using other available data).

Fair value hierarchy for financial assets

The most reliable fair value measurement is the price quoted in an active market. If the price is observable, it is

used as an input for the fair value measurement (Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy).

In absence of a liquid market, the fair value is determined based on observable market indicators, with the

instruments measured on the basis of such inputs being classified into Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

The fair value of financial instruments traded rarely and whose prices are not readily observable is a less objective
measure. Therefore, in calculating the fair value for such a financial asset or liability, all significant risks affecting it

should be identified and considered.

In calculating fair value, the Bank considers the rules of the fair value hierarchy that reflect the significance of the

measurement inputs. Each instrument is subject to an individual detailed analysis.

Where quoted market prices for a financial instrument are not observable, the fair value of the instrument is
determined using valuation models relying on observable market data. If ali significant inputs into the model are

available, the instrument is classified into Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

The fair value hierarchy levels are determined by reference to the lowest level of inputs that are significant for
measuring the fair value of the instrument. The fair value measurement levels described further below relate to

financial assets reported in the balance sheet at fair value.

Impairment of financial assets
Impairment of assets identified as impaired

Financial assets are reviewed at each financial statements date to determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of an item is estimated.

individually significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. Remaining financial assets
are reviewed on a collective basis, in accordance with the relevant CNB regulations.
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q SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
4.1 Financial instruments (continued)
Impairment of financial assets {continued)

Financial assets not identified as impaired are included in the impairment test for the purpose of a collective
assessment.

The Bank first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for assets that are individually
significant {mainly corporate exposures) and collectively for assets that are not individually significant (mainly
retail exposures). However, assets assessed individually as unimpaired are then included in groups of assets with
similar credit risk characteristics.

The Bank estimates impairment losses in cases where it judges that the observable data indicate the likelihood of a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows of the asset or portfolio of assets. Such evidence includes
delinquency in payments or other indications of financial difficulty of borrowers and adverse changes in the
economic conditions in which borrowers operate, or in the value or enforceability of security, where these changes
can be correlated with defaults.

The recoverabie amount of financial assets measured at amortised cost is caiculated as the present value of the
expected future cash flows, discounted at the instrument’s original interest rate. Short-term balances are not
discounted. The carrying amounts of assets are impaired through an allowance account, and the impairment losses

are recognised in the income statement.
Impairment of assets not identified as impaired

In addition to impairment of assets identified as impaired, the Bank recognises impairment in profit or loss in
respect of exposures that are not identified as impaired at total amount of 1 % of total exposures, in accordance
with the accounting regulations of the CNB.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and current accounts with the Croatian National Bank with an original
maturity of up to 90 days as well as balances with other banks, net of any provision for impairment and
uncollectible amounts and items in process of collection.

Debt securities

Debt securities that the Bank holds for the purpose of short-term profit-taking are classified as assets available for
sale and carried at fair value.

Placements with banks

Placements with banks are classified as loans and receivables and measured at amortised cost less provision for
impairment.

4.2 Income tax

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in
profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive
income, in which case it is also recognised in equity or other comprehensive income. Current tax is the expected
tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using the tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the financial
statements date, and any adjustments to tax payable in respect of previous years.
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4.2 Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation
purposes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates in effect at the balance sheet date.

Deferred taxes are not discounted and are classified in the balance sheet as non-current assets and/or non-current
liabilities. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the related tax benefit wilt
be realised. At each financial statements date, the Bank reviews the unrecognised contingent tax assets and the
carrying amount of the recognised tax assets.

4.3 Property and equipment

Iltems of property and equipment are recognised at historical cost or revalued amount less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis so as ta write down the cost over the estimated useful life of an
asset. Land and assets under construction are not depreciated.

The residual values and useful lives of assets are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each financial
statements date. Where the net carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, it is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount. Gains and losses on disposal are determined as the difference between
the proceeds and the net carrying amount and included in the income statement.

Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of an asset as follows:

2017 2016
Buildings 2.50% 2.50%
Computers 25% 25%
Furniture and equipment 10% - 20% 10% - 20%
Motor vehicles 25% 25%
Other tangible assets not mentioned above 5% — 10% 5% — 10%

4.4 Intangible assets

Intangible assets are recognised at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses. Development costs
are capitalized if all the requirements specified in 1AS 38 'Intangible Assets' are met. Amortisation is provided on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of an intangible asset.

Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of an asset as follows:

) B - 2017 2016
Intangible assets (other) 10%-20% 10%-20%
_Intangible assets - software 20%—-25% - 10%-25%
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4.5 Foreclosed assets

For assets acquired in lieu of uncollected receivables the Bank assesses the marketability and only marketable
assets, the value of which can be measured reliably, are recognised as assets in the statement of financial position.
Such assets are stated at the lower of the cost of related outstanding receivables and the current fair value of that
asset. Bank’s intention is mainly to sell such assets (such assets are not amortised) or held it to earn rentals (such
assets are disclosed within Note 21 Investment property).

4.6 Assets available for sale

Tangible assets taken over in exchange for uncollected receivables are stated in the statement of financial position
on the assets available for sale if the following conditions are met:

» thereis a sales plan and activities are carried out to find a buyer,

e the assets are ready for sale in the present state,

e sales are highly probable,

o assets offered for sale at a reasonable price, or when the price of an asset is acceptable in relation to its
market value, and it is unlikely that there will be significant deviations from the sale or resignation ptan,

e Sales should be completed within one year from the date of classification, unless the delay is caused by
events or circumstances beyond the control of the Bank and there is sufficient evidence that it will remain
in accordance with the plan of sale of assets.

In cases where due to the aggravating circumstances of sales caused by events or circumstances beyond the
control of the Bank and there is sufficient evidence that the Bank has remained consistent with its sales plan,
tangible assets taken over in exchange for uncollected receivables will continue to be recognized, measured and
disclosed as an asset intended for sale.

This asset category is initially recognized at fair value, reduced for estimated expected selling costs.

After initial, the listed asset is subsequently measured at a lower value between net book and fair value less costs
to sell. If the above conditions are not met, the Bank's material assets taken over in exchange for uncollected
receivables are initially recognized as held assets in accordance with International Accounting Standard 2
Inventories.

4.7 investment property

Investment properties are properties which are held by the Bank either to earn rentals or for capital appreciation.

Investment property is measured initially at cost. At subsequent measurement of investment property, the Bank
applies the fair value model. The Bank conducts measurement of fair value on an income basis annually by an
independent valuer.

The purchase cost is the amount of money or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of the other consideration
paid for the purpose of acquiring the property at the time of its purchase or construction or, where appropriate,
the value associated with that asset at initial recognition. Transaction costs are included in initial measurement.
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4.8 impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Depreciable assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in the circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is determined as the
difference between the carrying amount of an asset and its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher
of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered an impairment loss are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each
reporting date.

Property, plant and equipment as well as intangible assets are reviewed for impairment whenever circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recovered.

When the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognised in the
income statement for items of property, piant and equipment and intangibie assets carried at acquisition cost.

4.9 Provisions for liabilities and charges

The Bank recognises provisions when it has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and
if is probable that it will have an outflow to settle these obligations whose amount can be reliably estimated.

Provisians for liabilities and charges are maintained at a level which Management believes is adequate to absorb
probable future losses. Management determines the adequacy of the provision based upon reviews of individual
items, current economic conditions, the risk characteristics of the various categories of transactions and other
relevant factors.

When the outflow of economic benefits to settle the obligations is no longer probable or less than the estimated
provision is reversed. Provisions are released only for those costs which are originally recognised.

4.10 Employee benefits

The Bank pays contributions to pension insurance funds on a mandatory, contractual basis, in accordance with the
law. The Bank has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are
recognised as employee benefit expense when they arise.

The Bank recognises a provision for bonuses when there is a constructive obligation resulting from a contract or
past practice. Furthermore, the Management recognises accrued benefits on the basis of annual vacation days
outstanding at the date of the financial statements.

In calculating provisions for severance payments and jubilee rewards, discounted expected future cash flows
arising from the liabilities is preformed, using discount rates that, in the opinion of management, best represent
the time value of money.

4.11 Share capital and reserves

Share capital is denominated in the Croatian kunas and stated at nominal value.
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4  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.12 Accumulated losses

If the Bank recognises a loss for the financial year, it is transferred to accumulated losses.

4.13 Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense for all interest bearing financial instruments are recognised in the income statement
as they accrue, including those measured at amortized cost and those available for sale, using the effective interest
rate method. The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset or a
financial liability and of allocating interest income or expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of a
financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or
financial liability. The calculation inputs include all fees and percentage points paid or received between the
parties to the contract that are included in the effective interest rate, as well as transaction costs and all other
premiums or discounts. The resulting income and expenses are included in profit or loss within interest income
and income expense respectively.

They also include fees and commissions on loans and advances to customers as well as on borrowings from other
banks.

4.14 Fee and commission income and expense

Fee and commission income comprises mainly fees received from customers for loans, guarantees, letters of credit
and other services provided by the Bank. Fees are recognised as income upon the maturity date of services.

Fee and commission expense consist of fees paid to licensed banks for payment services provided in the foreign
exchange operations, as well as to the Financial Agency services (FINA) for domestic payments.

4.15 Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Croatian kunas at the rates of exchange applicable at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the exchange rate in effect at the financial statements date. Foreign exchange differences arising
on translation are recognised in the income statement. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currency that are stated at fair value are translated in HRK at the foreign exchange rates applicable at the dates
when the fair values were determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated at the transaction date but are not retranslated at the balance sheet date.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in foreign currencies and classified as available for
sale are analysed as the difference between the exchange differences arisen from changes in the security's
amortised cost and other changes in the net carrying amount of the security. Exchange differences are recognised
in profit or loss as part of exchange gains and losses on revaluation of monetary assets and liabilities.

4.16 Contingent liabilities and commitments

In the ordinary course of business, the Bank enters into commitments which are maintained on off-balance-sheet
accounts and primarily include guarantees, letters of credit and undrawn loan commitments. Such financial
commitments are recognised in the statement of financial position if and when they become payable.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
4.17 Rents

The Bank rents office space to perform operations that are treated as operating leases. The underlying asset is not
recognised in the statement of financial position, and payments under operating leases are recognised in the
income statement or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Rental income under operating leases Bank recognises in the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

4,18 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value net less costs. Subsequent valuation is carried at amortized cost
and the difference between proceeds less transaction costs, and the amount payable at maturity is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss during the period of the borrowings as interest expense. The amount was
subsequently reduced by the deferred part of the fees paid during the loan approval.

4.19 Activities in the name and on behalif of third parties

The Bank manages assets on behalf of legal persons. These amounts do not represent the Bank's assets and are
excluded from the statement of financial position. For the services provided the Bank charges a fee which is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

4.20 Reporting by business segments

A business segment is an integral part of the Bank that engages in business activities from which it may earn
revenues or expenses, including transactions with other parts of the Bank. The bank in 2017 did not apply the
internal transfer pricing when determining business performance of individual segments.

4.21 Accounting estimates and judgements in the application accounting policies

The Bank produces estimates and assumptions on uncertain events, including estimates and assumptions on the
future. Such accounting assumptions and estimates are regularly reviewed, and they are based on historical
experience and other factors, like the expected flow of future events that may be reasonably assumed in existing
circumstances but, despite of this, inevitably represent the sources of estimate uncertainty. Evaluation of losses
from impairment of a portfolio exposed to credit risk and evaluation of fair value of collateral in the form of real
estate as an integral part of the evaluation, represents the most significant source of estimation uncertainty. This
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty, that carry considerable risk of possible significant adjustments of
assets' and liabilities' carrying value in the next business year, are described below.

a) Losses from impairment of loans and receivables

Chapter 3 ‘Basis of preparation of the financial statements’ details the estimates and judgments made regarding
loans and receivables.

Chapter 4 ‘Accounting policies’ provides detailed explanations of the estimates and judgements applied to financial
assets at amortised cost.

b) Deferred tax

The Bank recognises deferred tax asset in line with management estimate. The management estimate is based on

the Long-term business plan aimed at future profitable operations.
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4  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.21 Accounting estimates and judgements in the application accounting policies (continued)

c) Regulatory requirements

The CNB and the Croatian Financial Services Supervisory Agency are authorized to exercise regulatory supervision
over the Bank's operations and may impose the requirement to revise the assets' and liabilities' carrying amounts,
in accordance with relevant regulations.

d) Legal cases
The Bank conducts an individual assessment of all court disputes. The assessment is conducted by the Department
of Legal Affairs. As noted in Note 31, the Bank has booked HRK 7,065 thousand in principal and interest on debt

obligations (2016: HRK 9,004 thousand). These amounts represent the best estimate of the Bank for Losses in
Court Disputes.

e) Holidays and severance payments

The right to vacation shall be recognized by the Bank during the period of its origin. The accrued annual liability is
recognized on the basis of the employee's performance until the reporting date.

Repayments for early termination of employment are recognized as an expense when the Bank has a contractual
obligation. The Bank does not apply the employee reward system.

f) Property investments
Property investments are stated at cost. The Bank applies a fair value model after a subsequent valuation of an

investment in real estate. The Bank performs a measure of fair value measurement on a per-year basis carried out
by an independent.
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5 INTEREST INCOME

5.1 Interest income analysed by type of customer

. — 2017 2016
Companies 60,945 79,703
Individuals 26,602 25,763
Government units 9,325 23,364
Banks and other financial institutions 1,211 1,941
Other organisations 73 654
Total o 98,156 131,425

Included in interest income is income from partly recoverable placements in the amount of HRK 5.4 million (2016:
HRK 5.9 million), of which HRK 4.2 million (2016: HRK 4.4 million) relate to legal persons, and the remaining HRK
1.2 million (2016: HRK 1.5 million) to individuals.

5.2 Interest income analysed by portfolio

2017 2016
Loans and receivables 89,286 111,011
Financial assets available for sale 5,847 13,545
Financial assets held to maturity 3,023 6,869
Total 98,156 131,425
6 INTEREST EXPENSE
6.1 Interest expense analysed by source
2017 2016
Individuals 28,558 40,925
Banks and other financial institutions 3,921 9,621
Non-residents 2,602 3,393
Croatian National Bank 2,150 1,673
Companies 1,592 6,581
Government units 527 1,200
Other organisations 153 323
Total 39,503 63,716
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5 INTEREST EXPENSE (continued)

6.2 Interest expense by portfolio

2017 2016
Financial liahilities at amortised cost 39,503 63,716
Total 39,503 63,716
7 FEE AND COMISSION INCOME

2017 2016
Companies 5,088 5,62
Individuals 4,071 4,067
Financial institutions 730 800
Non-profit organisations 262 265
Government units 219 218
Non-residents 83 78
Total 10,453 12,056
8 FEE AND COMISSION EXPENSE

2017 2016
Domestic parners 2,948 2,092
Service fees and commissions to FINA 1,602 2,048
Foreign banks 167 179
Republic of Croatia 36 41
Total o 4,753 4,360
9 NET FINANCIAL GAINS

2017 2016
Net gain on financial assets available for sale 9,773 6,679
Net gain on financial assets held to maturity 5,411 1,026
Net gain on financial assets at fair value through profit or ioss - 46
Total S 15,184 7,751

The net gain on assets held to maturity represents the result on early redemption of bonds by the bond issuer,
which the Bank classified initially as held to maturity.
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10 NET INCOME FROM EXCHANGE DIFFERENCES

- 2017 2016
Income from foreign currency trading 3,161 3,364
Net foreign exchange gains arising from foreign currency clause 1,659 4,657
Net foreign exchange gains on translation of provision for potential credit losses 148 377
Net foreign exchange losses arising from foreign currency clause (2,225) (5,179)
Total 2,743 3,219
11 OTHER OPERATING INCOME
2017 2016
Rental income 4,196 4,451
Net gains from the sale of property, plant and equipment, and foreclosed assets 4,073 1,593
Collection of previously suspended interest 5 62
Other income 420 255
Total ) 8,694 6,361
12 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSE
2017 2016
Net salaries 18,355 19,130
Contributions, taxes and surtaxes 12,556 14,054
Other staff-related costs 2,329 1,899
Net provision for long-term employee benefits (jubilee awards and termination
benefits) (Note 30) 46 28
Total staff-related costs 33,286 35,111
Amortization and depreciation (Note 22) 3,425 3,470
Total amortization and depreciation 3,425 3,470
Materials and services 14,736 14,977
Rental costs 5,308 6,041
Marketing expenses 460 435
Judicial and administrative fees 1,415 497
Savings deposit insurance costs 5,576 5,853
Other 3,440 1,581
__Iotil—g;t_ﬁéer operating expenses o o 30,935 29,384
Total 67,646 67,965
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12 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES {continued)

At 31 December 2017, the Bank employed 191 persons (2016: 213 employees).

Personnel expenses include HRK 5,251 thousand (2016: HRK 5,636 thousand) of mandatory pension contributions
paid into mandatory pension funds. The contributions are determined at a certain percentage of the employees’
gross salaries.

12.1 Rental costs

Rental costs mostly relates to rental costs of office space in which the Bank carries out its activities. The rental
cost in 2017 amounts to HRK 5,308 thousand (2016: HRK 6,041 thousand). Below is an outline of future minimum
rental payments.

31 December 2017
In thousands of HRK

Up to 1 year 1to 3 years 3 to 5 years

Rental payment 5,050 5,050 5,050

31 December 2016

In thousands of HRK

Up to 1 year 1to 3 years 3 to 5 years
Rental payment 6,529 6,529 6,529
13 IMPAIRMENT LOSSES AND PROVISIONS
2017 2016
Impairment losses on loans and advances to customers (Note 20,2) (23,809) (15,066)
Impairment on securities (note 19) (28,693) -
Impairment losses on foreclosed and tangible assets (Note 22,23) (6,988) (494)
Net change in the provisions for legal actions against the Bank (Note 30) (1,307) (5,282)
Impairment losses on other assets (including provisions for unidentified losses on a
collective basis) (1,698) (899)
Impairment of investment property (Note 21} (72) (1,994)
Impairment losses on interest receivable (Note 20,2) (70) (20)
(Provisions)/reversa!l of provision for identified losses for contingent liabilities (Note 31) (51) 36
Other provisions (Note 30) (10) (14)
Reversal of provisions and impairment allowances on loans and other receivables on a
collective basis (Notes 15,16,17,19, 20,2, and 24) 7,134 1,348
Subsequently recovered placements written-off as uncollectible in prior years 475 212
Provisions for unidentified losses on a collective basis for contingent liabilities (Note 30) 474 66

Total (54,615)  (22,107)

48



94

(920°T) 959
6 (v22'v)
{8TTT) 0€6't
{(19s) (ss6)
080T 159'T
661 {zg9's)
v99°c {t821E)
910¢ 102
680V - s8z 90T €1
9€S'T - - 9¢5°T
559 - 90T B
868'T 587 - ez
(zze't) - - (zeg'T)
(920'T) (664) - -
9y 80T - 66
) ~ sjesse |eloueuyy
e a|es-l10}-d|qejieAe
|eyoL S3SSO| Xe | JO anjen Jiey ay)

Xe} awodug
piemio) Alied o) a|ge|leAr S9SSO| Xe) JO UOIIeSH{1IN Pa1eWIISa Ul 88ueyd 10 19313
pJemioy 1Y3noiq sasso| xel Jo Uones|jinn

3WOJUI 9|gEXEI-UOU JO 1334)3

s9suadxa a|qrIaNpap-uou Xey Jo 13943

(%07 :9T02) %8T 0 3181 31 1€ XB] 3W0DUI JO 193)43
uoljexe} 210499 jjoad Sununoddy

:SMOJjof SD UMOYS S} SHNSal XD) Pup BUIRUN0IIO 3Y] UIIMIIG UOIIDIIDUOCIDY

xe1 anoqe uonepnasdag
ul 28ueyd pasijeadun

wo.} dWodul panayad

.m.v._”m I:

LT0¢ 49quiadaQ 1€ 1Y
awooul aAIsuayaidiLod
Jaylo pue

A1nba ul pasiudoday
- $S0|

40 yyoud uy pasiudoony

910¢ J°qwiLdaQ TE v

BW0dU] JAISUBYId W0
13Y30 pue

Annba u) pasiugoday
N ~ ssg)
10 1j04d Ul pasiudodsy
910z Atenuer T3y

S9Z'1

(z89)

S6E
este
(s8uimousoq)/sueo)

uaAIF uo D)k 1SDIBIU| BAIDBYD
ul papnpul (sasuadxa)/

awodul 294 pasiagag

519SSE Paso[da.0}
Jo Juaweduw
Jad awodu pasisyaag

$13SSD X0) PaIIafap ul SIUIWINON

XV1IANOONI +T

(panunuod) £10z 1e9A ayy o4
SINIWFLVLS TVIDONVYNId FHL O1 SI1ON
PP WIINVE VILYOYD



CROATIA BANKA d.d.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year 2017 (continued)

14 INCOME TAX (continued)

Unrecognised deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax approval:

The amount of

Available for transfer up to Tax loss unrecognised

deferred tax assets
2018 11,010 1,982
2022 27,384 4,929
Total 38,394 6,911

The possibility of using unrecognised tax approvals expires in 2022.

The amount of unused tax losses are not recognised as deferred tax assets in the statement of comprehensive
income because it is not likely that there will be sufficient taxable income to use these deferred tax assets.

15 CASH
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
Current account balance 67,339 58,866
Cash in hand:
-in HRK 13,596 14,948
- in foreign currencies 21,769 6,756
Cash on foreign currency accounts with domestic banks 71,340 194,938
Cash on foreign currency accounts with foreign banks 4,046 3,872
Checks and other assets in course of collection 5 5
Provisions for impairment for unidentified losses on a collective basis (1,427) (2,577)
Total 176,668 276,808
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year 2017 {continued)

16 RECEIVABLES FROM THE CROATIAN NATIONAL BANK

31 December 31 December

e -_, - 2017 2016
Obligatory reserve

-in HRK 151,068 192,439

Other obligatory deposits - 1,206

Provisions for impairment for unidentified losses on a collective basis (1,511) {1,936)

Total 149.557 191.709

The CNB imposes a requirement to banks to calculate an obligatory reserve, which is required to be deposited with
the CNB and held in the form of other liquid receivables.

The obligatory reserve requirement as at 31 December 2017 was 12 % (2016: 12 %) of deposits, borrowings and
issued debt securities denominated in kunas and foreign currencies.

As at 31 December 2017, the required rate for the part of the obligatory reserve calculated based on kuna
liabilities to be deposited with the CNB amounted to 70%, 0 percent of the foreign-currency denominated balance
(2016: 0%), whereas the remaining 30 percent (2016: 30%) could be held in the form of other liquid receivables.
This includes the part of foreign currency obligatory reserve required to be held in HRK. The foreign-currency
portion of the obligatory reserve is maintained through daily balances of foreign-currency receivables on the
Target 2 foreign-currency account with the Croatian National Bank as well as on accounts with foreign banks with
appropriate ratings. The minimum share of the foreign-currency reserve funds on the CNB Target2 reserve account
is 2 percent, whereas 75 percent of the foreign-currency reserve funds are included in the allocated kuna-
denominated obligatory reserve funds and maintained in kunas.
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17 PLACEMENTS WITH BANKS

31 December 2017

31 December 2016

Deposits with foreign banks 22,892 52,016
Deposits with domestic banks 424 1,837
Accrued interest 9 20
Provisions for impairment for unidentified losses on a collective basis (233) (539)
Total 23,092 53,334

18 FINANCIAL ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR SALE

31 December

31 December

2017 2016
Treasury bills /i/ 462,839 498,257
Foreign-currency denominated bonds /iii/ 228,099 125,265
HRK-denominated bonds /ii/ 179,886 202,756
Corporate bills 41,823 774
Shares /iv/ 439 439
Provisions for impairment for unidentified losses on a collective basis (29,467) (774)
Accrued interest 3,434 7,056
Total 887,053 833,773
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18 FINANCIAL ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR SALE {continued)

-Corporate Accrued
o Treasury bills Bonds Shares bills _interest TOTAL
At 01 January 2017 498,257 328,021 439 7,056 833,773
Increase 502,015 454,126 41,049 997,190
Changes in fair value (8,531) - - (8,531)
Decrease (537,433) (365,631) (3,622) (906,686)
Impairment - - - (29,467) - (29,467)
At 31 December 2017 462,339 407,985 439 12,356 3,434 887,053
Corporate Accrued
Treasury hills Bonds Shares biils interest TOTAL
At 01 January 2016 520,302 153,697 439 3,294 677,732
Increase 582,634 341,254 3,762 927,650
Changes in fair value 7,287 - - 7,287
Decrease (604,679) (174,217) - (778,896)
Impairment - - - - -
At 31 December 2016 498,257 328,021 439 7,056 833,773

As of 31 December 2017 Bank has pledged, based on received repo loans of the Croatian National Bank in the
amount of HRK 110,000 thousand (2016: HRK 160,000 thousand) and Erste&Steiermérkische Bank, in the amount
of HRK 40,000 thousand treasury bills and government bonds worth HRK 162,697 thousand (2016.: HRK 172,603
thousand of treasury bills), whereas it accepted from domestic companies shares in the total amount of HRK 8,924
thousand for repo loans issued in the amount of HRK 6,100 thousand (2016: HRK 3,500 thousand loans, HRK 5,308
thousand collateral).

/i/ The treasury bills relate to:

- HRK 80,000 thousand {nominal) of HRK treasury bills {2016: HRK 130,000 thousand) issued by the Croatian
Ministry of Finance with a yield of 0.445% - 0.642% (2016: 0.951% - 1.457%)

- HRK 262.978 thousand {(nominal) of foreign currency treasury bills (2016: HRK 287,196 thousand) issued by the
Croatian Ministry of Finance with a yield of 0.096% (2016: 0.7%).

- HRK 120.218 thousand (nominal) of treasury bills (2016: HRK 83.136 thousand) issued by the Croatian Ministry of
Finance and tied under a currency protection clause, with a yield of 0.05% (2016: 0.171% - 0.249%).
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18 FINANCIAL ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR SALE (continued)

/ii/ The foreign-currency denominated bonds comprise the following:
- HRK 225,409 thousand (nominal) in respect of a bond issued by the Croatian Ministry of Finance that
matures on 27 January 2030, with a nominal interest rate of 2.75% (purchased in December 2017)

The bonds with a currency protection clause comprise the following:

- HRK 60,109 thousand (nominal) in respect of a bond issued by the Croatian Ministry of Finance (2016: HRK
133,367 thousand) that matures on 10 July 2024, with a nominal interest rate of 5.750% (2016: 5,75%)

- HRK 45,082 thousand (nominal) in respect of a bond issued by the Croatian Ministry of Finance that matures on
29 November 2022, with a nominal interest rate of 5.375% (purchased in November and December 2017

- HRK 28,026 thousand (nominal) in respect of a bond issued by the Croatian Ministry of Finance that matures on
5 March 2020, with a nominal interest rate of 6.50% (purchased in December 2017

- HRK 13,149 thousand (nominal} in respect of a bond issued by the Croatian Ministry of Finance(2016: HRK 756
thousand ) that matures on 22 july 2022, with a nominal interest rate of 6.500% (2016: 6,500%)

/iii/ HRK-denominated bonds comprise the following: ,
- HRK 5,000 thousand (nominal) in respect of a bond issued by the Croatian Ministry of Finance that matures
on 27 November 2023, with a nominal interest rate of 1.75% (purchased in November 2017)
- HRK 4,780 thousand (nominal) in respect of a bond issued by the Croatian Ministry of Finance that matures
on 10 November 2019, with a nominal interest rate of 5.125% (the same as in 2016)

/iv/ Of the above amount of bonds in 2017, HRK 40,990 thousand refers to the due notes of the client Konzum d.d.
and from the provisions impairment losses for identified losses of HRK 28,693 thousand relates to stated client.

/v/ The shares relate to the Bank's equity interest in companies and financial institutions below 20%.
The shares are not quoted and comprise the following:

- 1,044 units of the Croatian Register of Debtors

- 85 shares of Trzi$te novca Zagreb (TNZ-R-A).

31 December 2017 31 December2016

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Foreign-currency bonds 228,099 - - 125,265
HRK bonds 179,886 202,756 = -
Treasury bills - 462,839 - 498,257
Corporate bhills - - 12,356 - .
Shares - - 439 - - 439
Total 407,985 462,839 12,795 328,021 498,257 439
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18 FINANCIAL ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR SALE (continued)

Financial instruments carried at fair value are categorised into three levels of the IFRS fair value hierarchy, as

follows:

- Level 1 - instruments that are valued using quoted prices in active markets, liquid markets. These
instruments include: liquid debt securities that are traded on liquid stock markets and shares in

investment funds.

Level 2 — Instruments measured using valuation technigues using observable market data. The fair value
of those instruments is determined by reference to similar instruments traded on active markets, or
where all inputs used in a particular valuation technique are available on the market. These instruments

include less liquid debt securities that are valued based on a model that uses Level 1 input.

- Level 3 — instruments measured using valuation techniques that are based on market data not readily
available in the market. These are instruments whose fair value cannot be determined directly by
reference to available market information and for whose value calculation different valuation techniques

are used. These instruments include illiquid debt securities and illiquid equity securities.

19 ASSETS HELD TO MATURITY

31 December

31 December

2017 2016
Domestic currency bills of exchange - 46,358
HRK bonds - 4,766
Accrued interest - 34
Provisions for impairment for identified losses on an individual basis -
Provisions for impairment for unidentified losses on a collective basis - (511)
Total = 50,647

55



CROATIA BANKA d.d.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year 2017 (continued)

20 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

20.1 Analysis by type of client

Analysis by type of client (including accrued interest and provision fo

Private Individuals

Cash loans

Housing loans

Loans for agriculture
Margin loans

Overdrafts on transaction accounts
Lombard loan

Loans for tourism
Mortgage loans

Other loans

Total loans to individuals

Provisions for impairment for identified losses

Provisions for impairment for unidentified losses on a collective basis
Interest impairment provision - individuals

Total provisions for impairment - individuals

Accrued interest
Total loans to individuals, net

Legal persons (Corporate customers)
Syndicated loans

Investment loans

Working-capital loans

Overdrafts on transaction accounts
Loans for agriculture

Loans for construction

Loans for payments under guarantees
Lombard loans

Other loans

Total loans to legal persons

Provisions for impairment for identified losses

Provisions for impairment for unidentified losses on a collective basis
Interest impairment provision - legal persons

Total provisions for impairment

Accrued interest

Total loans to legal persons, net

Total loans
Total loan provision

rinterest)

- _E;_l_D_eErpb_er 2017

31 December 2016

Total net

170,883 168,905
56,910 57,895
34,720 48,821
31,894 25,935
15,732 14,983
14,667 15,510
13,335 14,869

6,641 7,882
68,366 57,590

413,148 412,390

(38,546) (32,802)
(3,557) (3,575)

(442) (437)

(42,545) (36,814)

2,588 2,585

373,191 378,161

378,891 704,802

250,205 293,641

160,893 175,470
37,321 35,833
12,567 13,766

7,624 9,856
2,458 7,071
849 28,964
142,542 150,596
993,350 1,419,999
(210,113) (203,784)
(6,079) (10,755)
(1,794) (1,893)
(217,986) (216,432)
4,466 8,915
779,830 1,212,482
1,413,552 1,843,889
(260,531) (253,246)
1,153,021 1,590,643
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20 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS {continued)

20.1 Analysis by type of client {continued)

As at 31 December 2017, the total gross exposure arising from partly recoverable and non-recoverable loans was
HRK 451,196 thousand (2016: HRK 411,942 thousand), and the associated impairment losses amounted to HRK

248,659 thousand {2016: HRK 236,586 thousand), stated in Note 38.1.7

20.2 Changes in impairment losses and provision for contingent losses

Changes in impairment losses and provision for contingent losses are as follows:

2017 2016
R .Speciflc Specific
provisions for -
R . provisions for
i unidentified . . . . P —
Impairment Total impairment unidentified Totai
losses on a
X losses on a
collective R A
. collective basis
basis
Balance at 1 January 238,916 14,330 253,246 232,596 - 17,352 249,948
Net impairment losses
i.e. provisions (Note 13) 23,809 (4,694) 19,115 15,066 (3,022) 12,044
Net impairment losses
on interest receivable
(Note 13) 70 70 20 - 20
Exchange differences (157) (157) (383) - (383)
Write-offs (11,743) {11,743) (8,383) - (8,383)
Balance at 31 December 250,895 9,636 260,531 238,916 14,330 253,246

Under the applicable legislation, the Bank has to form reserves for unidentified losses on a loan portfolio basis
based on prior experience. Taking into account the legal provisions, the amount of the reserves by the Bank's
policies cannot be less than 1% of non-risk assets and 1% of non-risk commitments and contingencies as at 31
December 2017 (2016: 1% of non-risk assets and 1% of non-risk commitments and contingencies).

21 INVESTMENT PROPERTY

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

Investment property 33.702 35.696
Value adjustment (72) (1.994)
33.630 33.702

Total
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21 INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued}

Investment properties are properties which are held by the Bank either tc earn rentals or for capital appreciation.
Bank made in 2017 an impairment of the asset values in accordance with the new assessment of its market value.
Investment property is measured initially at cost. Fair value reflects income from operating leases and other
assumptions otherwise considered by other market participant in determining the fair value of investment
property under the current market conditions. The reported fair value reflects the market conditions prevailing for
an asset at the same location and in the same condition under a similar lease agreement.

Investment property contains one property on the basis of which the Bank earns income from the lease. The
contract with the tenant was concluded for an indefinite period and because very good business reiationship of
many years and the attractiveness of the location, the Bank does not expect contract termination in the coming
period of 5 years.

Under the contract, the Bank has no obligation to invest in the premises, and incurred no costs in this respect.

21.1 Lease income

Although the Bank has only one real estate classified as a lease payment, the rental income is also realized on the basis
of other real estate that is not classified in the said category, since the Bank intends to sell them instead of long-term
realization of their rental income. In 2017, the Bank realized rental income in the amount of HRK 4,196 thousand (2016:
HRK 4,451 thousand).

The net book value of the leased real estate on 31 December 2017 amounts to HRK 38,512 thousand (2016: HRK 38,252
thousand).

Below is a description of future expected operating lease income

31 December 2017

Up to 1 year 1to 3 years 3 to 5 years

Received lease payments —income 4,320 4,320 4,320
31 December 2016

Up to 1 year 1 to 3 years 3 to 5 years

Received lease payments - income 3,780 4,200 4,200
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21 INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued)

21.2 Fair value hierarchy

in thousands of HRK

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 ) Total
Balance at 31 December 2017
Investment properfy - - 33,702 33,702
Total assets - 33,702 33,702
Balance at 31 December 2016
Investment property - - 33,702 33,702
Total assets - 33,702 33,702
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22 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, AND INTAGIBLE ASSETS

in ths. of
HRK
. Equipment . .
Land and Furniture and other Tangible Tot.al Intangible Intangible . Tota.I Grand
. and . assets under tangible assets under intangible
buildings . tangible ) assets total
vehicles construction assets development assets
assets

Cost
Balance at 1 Januaryy
2016 28,147 8,403 = 22,781 44 59,375 27,605 270 27,875 87,250
Transferred from/to - - - (30) (30) - (30) {30) (60)
Additions 434 86 1,197 - 1,717 2,410 - 2,410 4,127
Disposals and retirements (3,873) (757) (2,373) (7,003) (152) (152) (7,155)
Balance at 31 December
2016 24,708 7,732 21,605 14 54,059 29,863 240 30,103 84,162
Additions - 38 299 - 337 1,214 180 1,394 1,731
Transferred from/to - - 27 - 27 (27) (240} {267) {240)
Disposals and retirements (12,305) {(2,918) (3,010) - {18,233) (296) - (296) (18,529)
Balance at 31 December
2017 12,403 4,852 18,921 B 14 36,190 30,754 180 30,934 67,124
Accumulated
depreciation/amortisatio
n
Balance at 31 December
2015 15,815 7,500 20,465 - 43,780 23,586 - 23,586 67,366
Charge for the year 2016 579 348 800 - 1,727 1,743 - 1,743 3,470
Disposals and retirements {1,843) (755) (2,277) - {4,875) (152) - (152) (5,026)
Balance at 31 December
2016 14,551 7,093 18,988 - 40,632 25,177 - 25,177 65,809
Charge for the year 2017 515 343 701 - 1,559 1,866 - 1,866 3,425
Disposals and retirements {6,384) (2,905) (2,992) - {12,281) (296) - {296) (12,577)
Balance at 31 December
2017 8,682 4,531 16,697 - 29,910 26,747 - 26,747 56,657
Net book value at 31
December 2016 15,613 1,258 2,561 14 19,446 2,530 - 2,530 21,976
Net book value at 31
December 2017 10,157 639 2,616 14 13,427 4,686 240 4,926 18,353
Net book value at 31
December 2017 3,721 321 2,224 14 6,280 4,007 180 4,187 10,467

During the year, the Bank retired certain items of property and equipment with a total cost of HRK 6,183 thousand
(2016: HRK 3,047 thousand) and sold a portion in the amount of HRK 40 thousand (2016: HRK 1,980 thousand).

At 31 December 2017 no own assets of the Bank were pledged as collateral, nor in 2016.

At 31 December 2017 the balance of assets still in used although fully written off amounts to HRK 23,351 thousand
(2016: HRK 28,262 thousand).
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23  FORECLOSED ASSETS

Changes in foreclosed assets for uncollected receivables are as follows:

31 December 31 December

o - B - 2017 2016
Balance at 1 January 23,389 24,539
Increase based on foreclosing assets 983 391
New provisions/impairment made (Note 13) (6,347) (494)
Other adjustments (transfer of assets upon final settlement) - (178)
Foreclosed assets sold (2,628) (869)
Balance ] ) 15,397 23,389

In 2017 the Bank foreclosed assets in the amount of HRK 2.628 thousand {2016: HRK 869 thousand) and realised a
gain in the amount of HRK 4,073 thousand (2016: HRK 1,593 thousand).

24 ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR SALE

31 December 31 December

2017 2016
Assets available for sale 5,280 B
Total 5,280

During 2017, the Bank has reclassified assets (business premises in Zadar and Porec) not used for business
operations to non-current assets held for sale at net book value since fair value of assets is higher than net book
value.

25 OTHER ASSETS

31 31

December December

o 2017 2016

Receivables from the state 17,759 17,759
Trade receivables 10,669 8,422
Receivables based on payments deposited with court by third purchasers 5,811 10,593
Other receivables 4,945 3,955
Other receivables from employees 4,537 4,539
Fees and commissions receivable 3,985 4,013
Receivables from domestic legal persons based on paid court costs 2,662 2,656
Items in course of collection 1,908 2,293
Provisions for unidentified losses on a collective basis (134) (182)
Provisions for individually identified losses (19,580) (18,289)
Total other assets 32,562 35,759
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26 LIABILITIES TO BANKS

31 December 2017

31 Decemb_er_2016

Demand deposits

-in HRK 16,545 3,114
- in foreign currencies 651 667
Total demand deposits 17,196 3,781
Term deposits

-in HRK 43,694 86,900
- in foreign currencies 1,237 1,233
Total term deposits 44,931 88,133
Accrued interest 46 181
Total 62,173 92,095

27 DEMAND DEPOSITS

31 December 2017

31 December 2016

Demand deposits - individuals

-in HRK 93,099 86,856

- in foreign currencies 83,318 78,566
Total demand deposits from individuals 176,417 165,422
Demand deposits - corporate

-in HRK 118,750 190,245

- in foreign currencies 11,280 9,175
Total corporate deposits 130,030 199,420
Demand deposits - financial institutions

-in HRK 1,187 1,861

- in foreign currencies 2 2
Total deposits from financial institutions 1,189 1,863
Demand deposits - government and other institutions

-in HRK 59,006 62,648

- in foreign currencies 13,057 12,722
Total demand deposits from government and other institutions 72,063 75,370
Restricted deposits

-in HRK 5,392 2,630

- in foreign currencies 15,103 16,253
Total restricted deposits 20,495 18,883
Deposits from foreign entities

-in HRK 1,835 2,031

- in foreign currencies 9,853 8,946
Total deposits from foreign entities 11,688 10,977
Total 411,882 471,935
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28 TERM DEPOSITS

31 December

31 December

- - 2017 2016

Deposits from individuals

- in HRK 146,294 161,764

- in foreign currencies 1,274,023 1,425,625
Total term deposits from individuais 1,420,317 1,587,389
Deposits - corporate

-in HRK 73,526 97,051

- in foreign currencies 2,080 35,585
Total corporate term deposits 75,606 132,636
Deposits - financial institutions

- in HRK 16,000 110,820

- in foreign currencies 676 680
Total term deposits from financial institutions 16,676 111,500
Total term deposits from government and other institutions 19,363 23,740
Deposits from foreign entities

-in HRK 2,540 3,997

- in foreign currencies 124,066 137,761
Total deposits from foreign entities 126,606 141,758
Deposits from non-profit organisations - foreign-currency denominated 188 -
Accrued interest 23,472 47,539
Total 1,682,228 2,044,562

29 BORROWINGS

31 December 2017

31 December 2016

Croatian National Bank
Domestic banks

Accrued interest

__Total

110,000 160,000

50,596 129,922

2,896 2,081
163,492 292,003
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30 QTHER LIABILITIES

31 December 31 December
o 2017 2016
Deferred income and accrued expenses 3,072 1,440
Amounts due to employees 2,511 2,771
Other liabilities 2,080 1,357
Liabilities for savings deposit insurance 1,350 1,518
Liabilities to suppliers 245 412
Fees and commissions payable 1,350 1,518
Amounts owed for insured deposits of bankrupt banks /i/ 1,146 1,281
Total 10,663 9,109

J/i/ The State Agency for Bank Rehabiiitation is making payments of insured deposits of bankrupt banks (Credo
banka and Centar banka) through the Bank. The amount payable by the Bank in 2017 under claims of insured

deposit holders is HRK 245 thousand (2016: HRK 412 thousand).

31 PROVISIONS

31 December 2017 31 December 2016

Provisions for legal cases 7,065 9,004
Provisions for contingent liabilities and commitments-collective 1,054 1,528
Provisions for contingent liabilities and commitments-individuals 57 6
Vacation accruals 146 100
Other provisions 48 38
Total 8,370 10,676
Movement in provisions is shown as follows:

2017 2016
Balance at 1 January 10,676 8,186
Income from reversal of provisions for legal claims against the bank (Note 13) (318) (848)
New provisions made for legal cases (Note 13) 1,625 6,130
Movement in provisions for commitments and contingencies (Note 13) (423) (102)
income from reversal of provisions for jubilee awards, termination and similar benefits 46 28
Movement in other provisions 10 14
Movement in payments made under legal actions (3,246) (2,732)
Balance at 31 December - 8370 10,676
fn 2017 the Bank paid HRK 3,246 thousand from the provisions for judicial proceedings (2016: HRK 2,732

thousand).

Provisions for off-balance-sheet exposure to credit risk and legal claims are recognised in profit or loss as other

losses from impairment and provisions (Note 13).
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32 SHARE CAPITAL

The only shareholder of the Bank as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 is the State Agency for Deposit

Insurance and Bank Rehabilitation.

- 31 December 2017 31 December 2016
Share capital 474,600 474,600
Accumulated losses (290,536) (292,174)
Reserves (1,425) 5,571
Profit/({loss) for the year (30,631) 1,638
Total equity 152,008 189,635

The share capital in the amount of HRK 474,600 thousand (2016: HRK 474,600 thousand) consists of 4,746,000
shares with a nominal value of HRK 100 per share (2016: 4,746,000 shares with a nominal value of HRK 100 per

share).

33 EARNING PER SHARE

) 2017 2016
{Loss)/profit for the year (30,631) 1,638
Number of shares (in thousands) 4,746 4,746
(Loss)/earnings per share (6.45) 0.35
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34 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

31 December 2017

31 December 2016

Guarantees 43,067 46,373
QOther common risk-bearing off-balance sheet items 30,213 60,444
Revolving loans 29,978 45,278
Unbacked letters of credit 7,821 1,143
Total ) 111,079 153,238

35 LEGAL CASES

More than 200 legal claims from ex-shareholders of the Bank, and around forty three legal actions on other

grounds have been initiated against the Bank.

The Bank assesses the potential outflow of cash under proceedings carrying a risk of loss and forms appropriate

provisions in accordance with its internal act and applicable regulations.

As at 31 December 2017, the provisions for [osses from legal claims filed against the Bank amounted to HRK 7,065

thousand (2016: HRK 9,004 thousand).

Due to mentioned above, ex-shareholders of the Bank, suing the Bank for the return of shares and compensation
for share cancellation, have filed 220 legal claims against the Bank and only three of the disputes are formally

active although have been interrupted (from 2008 to 2012) and are not expected to continue.

Until the date of this report almost all proceedings were completed, with the majority being ruled in favour of the
Bank, and only several proceedings ruled in favour of the shareholders. However, as these proceedings pertain to
the ownership of shares, they do not produce a significant impact on the financial operations of the Bank.
Constitutional appeals were filed in cases where the judgements were in favour of the shareholders, and the
Constitutional Court made the decision to acknowledge the Bank’s constitutional appeals and returned the cases

to the commercial court for retrial.

36 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

31 December

31 December

2017 2016
Cash in hand and on current accounts with banks (Note 15) 178,095 279,385
Balances with other banks with maturities of up to 3 months (Note 17) 23,325 53,873
Total 201,420 333,258
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37 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The Bank is fully (100%) owned by the State Agency for Deposit Insurance and Bank Rehabilitation {DAB). The
Bank considers to be directly related to its sharehoider, Supervisory Board and Management Board members and
other executive management (jointly referred to as "the key management personnel”), close members of their
families, companies jointly controlled or significantly influenced by the Managing Bocard members and close
members of their families, in accordance with the definition of the related party provided in International
Accounting Standard 24 "Related Party Disclosures” (IAS 24). Key management includes members of the
Management Board, Department directors, directors of branches and directors of control function departments.
At 31 December 2017, the key management personnel of the Bank consisted of 24 persons (2016: 29 employees).

The balances of assets and liabilities as well as income and expenses as at 31 December 2017and 31 December

2016 and for the years then ended resulting from key transactions with related parties are as follows:

2017 Receivables Liabilities Income Expenses
DAB (sole shareholder) 1,611 1,611 14 6,186
Key management personnel

Short-term {a vista deposits, bonuses, salaries and fees) 4 4 28 8,502
Long-term (loans, deposits and other benefits) 7,003 7,003 290 51
State in narrow and broad definitions 1,367,999 1,367,999 56,214 6,981
Total 1,376,617 1,376,617 56,546 21,720
2016 Receivables Liahilities Income Expenses
DAB (sole shareholder) 61 19,703 11 5,896
Key management personnel

Short-term (a vista deposits, bonuses, salaries and fees) 4 614 24 9,182
Long-term {loans, deposits and other benefits) 8,832 1,899 324 46
State in narrow and broad definitions 1,659,453 317,276 59,139 10,143

“Totat 1,668,350 339,492 59,498

25,267
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37 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES (continued}

Key management personnel do not hold any of the Bank's shares. Loans and receivables from customers include
HRK 7,003 thousand {2016: HRK 8,402 thousand) of loans to key management personnel. During the year, the
Bank collected interest in the amount of HRK 290 thousand (2016: HRK 319 thousand) from loans and receivables
in respect of key management personnel, which were approved at annual interest rates ranging from 3.57% -
5.00% (2016: 3.00% to 5.23%). The balance of current accounts and deposits of customers includes term deposits
of key management personnel in the amount of HRK 2,545 thousand {2016: HRK 1.889 thousand). The interest
paid on those deposits in 2017 amounts to HRK 51 thousand (2016: HRK 46 thousand), and the interest rates
ranged from 0.10% to 2.75% (2016: 0.10% to 3.33%).

Expenses in respect of the Supervisory Board for 2017 amount to HRK 350 thousand {2016: HRK 312 thousand).

Expenses of the Management Board of the Bank in 2017 amounted to HRK 1,822 thousand (2016: HRK 1,754
thousand).

Transactions with the state in narrow and broad definitions comprise transactions with:
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- local governments,

- public non-financial companies,

- publicinsurance companies and pension funds,

- public auxiliary financial institutions,

- other monetary financial institutions of the state,

- other public financial intermediaries.

As at 31 December 2017, the exposure to the state in narrow and broad definitions comprises the exposure to
state-owned company Hrvatske autoceste d.o.0. in the amount of HRK 291,359 thousand (2016: HRK 424,026
thousand) in respect of a syndicated loan.

The Bank's exposure to HZ Cargo amounts to HRK 84,723 thousand (2016: HRK 94,593 thousand). The Bank is
exposed to amounts owed by Borovo d.d. of HRK 16,999 thousand (2016: HRK 17,760 thousand). Receivables from
Buro Pakovi¢ Holding amount to HRK 32,510 thousand {2016: HRK 33,673 thousand).

The Bank's exposures to the Ministry of Finance comprise those on the Ministry's quoted bonds in the amount of
HRK 669,074 thousand (2016: HRK 620,570 thousand) and the treasury bills in the amount of HRK 200,137
thousand (2016: HRK 212,765 thousand) issued by the Ministry of Finance.

The restricted deposit of the Ministry of Finance amounts to HRK 15,027 thousand (2016: HRK 15,116 thousand).

As at 31 December 2017, the Restructuring and Sale Centre holds on the transaction account at the Bank HRK
22,157 thousand (2016: HRK 36,903 thousand).

As at 31 December 2017, the Bank’s shareholder, the State Agency for Deposit Insurance and Bank Rehabilitation,
holds on the transaction account HRK 17,215 thousand (2016: HRK 18,185 thousand).

At 31 December 2017 the amount owed by the Bank for loans received from the Croatian Bank for Reconstruction
and Development (joint customer lending with CBRD) HRK 10.647 thousand (31 December 2016: HRK 130,754
thousand).

All the above-mentioned significant transactions with the state and state-owned companies were entered into on
a market-based principle.
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37 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES (continued)

Income recognised in the profit and loss for 2017 treated as key transactions is as follows:

- income from loans to Hrvatske autoceste for the year 2017 in the amount of HRK 18,675 thousand (2016:

HRK 22,188 thousand).

- income from loans to Hrvatske ceste for the year 2017 in the amount of HRK 10,681 thousand {2016: HRK

10,382 thousand).

- income from bonds issued by the Ministry of Finance in the amount of HRK 22,108 thousand (2016 : HRK

17,523 thousand).

- income from treasury biils issued by the Ministry of Finance amounts to HRK 840 thousand (2016 : HRK

1.911 thousand).

Expenses recognised in the profit and loss treated as key transactions is as follows:
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- expenses in respect of DAB relate to costs for the savings deposit insurance and rental expenses in the
amount of HRK 5,576 thousand and to transaction account costs in the amount of HRK 5 thousand (2016:

HRK 5,853 thousand : HRK 44 thousand).

Exposures under receivables from key management personnel and the state in broad and narrow definitions

include off-balance sheet receivables of the Bank in the following amounts:

Key management

State in narrow and

personnel broad definitions
31 December 2017
Guarantees - 5,417
Credit lines 375 1,692
31 December 2016
Guarantees - 6,873
Credit lines 430 9,173

The Bank's maximum off-balance sheet exposure to the state in narrow and broader definitions relates Buro
Pakovic¢ grupa d.d. and amounts to HRK 5,925 thousand (2016: to Buro Bakovic¢ in the amount of HRK 10.383
thousand). All the exposures presented in this note are presented on a net basis, i.e. less identified and

unidentified impairment losses.
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38 RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES

Details on the Bank's exposure to risks and methods the Management Board used to manage those risks are
described below. The key financial risks to which the Bank is exposed comprise credit risk, liquidity risk and market
risk. Market risk includes currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk.

38.1, Credit risks

The Bank is continually exposed to credit risk arising from its lending and investing activities and in cases where it
acts as an intermediary on behalf of customers or other third parties.

The Bank’s primary exposure to credit risk arises from loans and receivables from customers and banks and
investments in securities. In addition, the Bank is exposed to credit risk on its off-balance sheet items, reflecting its
commitments under undrawn facilities and guarantees issued.

Credit risk is the greatest individual risk arising from the Bank's operations; therefore, all organisational units and
functions of the Bank monitor the risk closely. Credit risk management and controls are centralised within the Risk
Management Office that provides regular risk reports to the Management Board, other bodies of the Bank, its

A oarmiar naan

For the purpose of credit risk management, the Bank has spread its principal credit risk management activities over
the following processes:

- loan approval

- loan monitoring

- loan portfolio analysis

- non-performing loans

- early warning of increased credit risk

- loan classification according to the magnitude of risk.

Establishing appropriate relations between the individual processes is a particularly important process, as it helps
prevent any process overlaps and misalignment and establishes the necessary level of segregation of duties and
responsibilities for the processes.

Organisational responsibilities for credit risk management are divided among the responsibility structures of sales
and back-office/organisational units/functionalities, among control and management functions, and operation
support, and are additionally positioned for all credit risk management segments, including:

- risk identification and monitoring
- risk analysis and supervision

- risk measurement/assessment

- risk controls

- risk reporting
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38 RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (continued)

38.1. Credit risks {continued)

Loan analysis is organisationally placed within the Risk Management Function whose scope of responsibilities
directly affect the credit risk management, primarily in developing analyses and opinions regarding the Bank's
credit risk appetite, which includes the following sub-processes:

- Providing opinion on new credit placements

- Providing opinion on proposals for changes to the conditions for the already existing ptacements

- Analysing the viability of proposed renewal and restructuring of the existing placements

- Periodic reviews of all existing placements.
In analysing placements that belong to the credit risk management area, the Risk Management Service also
estimates the acceptability of credit risk by individual placements, in accordance with the standards and criteria of
best banking practice, i.e. application of the effective (external and internal) normative regulations. It
communicates its views/principles of assessing the credit risk acceptability to decision-making individuals and
bodies responsible for loans.

Further responsibilities of staff engaged in loan analysis include monitoring credit risk exposure, including the early
warning of increased credit risk. The duties and responsibilities of the Risk Management Service include the credit
portfolio control activity, which ensures, in cooperation with other organisational units at the Bank, timely
identification of clients with potential risk. Such an approach involves a complex management of business relations
with customers with the aim to reduce the cost of credit risk as well as improve the quality of the Bank’s credit
portfolio.

Credit risk control is based on an individual approach to the credit risk assessment specifically tailored to individual
clients, including identification of clients with a potential risk, analysis and classification of clients with potential
risk, determining the form and manner of managing business relations with clients, and following-up.

Special attention is paid to managing exposures to related parties by reference to the effective organisational
normative and operational rules, as well as other aspects of credit risk exposure defined by the Credit Institutions
Act and the related by-laws and internal acts governing its implementation.

38.1.1. Credit risk assessment

Loans and receivables (including contingent liabilities)

The Bank assesses the probability of default by individual clients using internal assessment tools created for all
groups of customers in line with the internal acts and applicable laws.

Loans and contingent liabilities are classified into the following three key risk groups:

1.1. fully recoverable loans (risk group A) — loans assessed as fully recoverable (both principal and interest) and
contingent liabilities expected not to result in an outflow of the Bank's resources, or if such an outflow is
required, that they will be recovered in full.

1.2. partly recoverable loans {risk group B) — loans assessed as not recoverable at contractual amounts (principatl
and interest) or contingent liabilities expected to result in an outflow of the Bank's resources in excess of the
estimated recoverable amount.

1.3. irrecoverable loans {risk group C) — loans estimated as fully irrecoverable or insignificantly recoverable and
contingent liabilities expected to result in an outflow of the Bank's resources that will never be recovered.
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38 RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES {continued)

38.1 Credit risk {continued)

38.1.1. Credit risk assessment (continued)

Managing credit risk of a portfolio of workout or non-performing (bad) loans is the responsibility of a separate unit
within the Bank which is in charge of working out such debt (Workout and Non-performing Loan Department),
both owed from legal persons and individuals. These activities are primarily aimed at realising positive effects of
the implementation of various forms of financial consolidation of clients’ business, including various forms of
prolongation, renewal or restructuring of loans with the aim of their recovery and maximising the recoverability of
loans and receivables as well as improving the loan and guarantee portfolio of the Bank, or fully or partially
stabilising as well as cases of full or partial stabilisation of the clients’ business by taking consolidation measures,
enabling the inclusion of such loans in “performing” ones.

The Risk Management Service estimates future cash flows from non-performing loans on the basis of which
provisions for impairment are determined. Such assessment is prepared for all loans managed.

The Bank makes provisions for identified losses on loans and their impairment as follows:

a) on anindividual basis

- for loans that are not included in the “small loans portfolio”

b) on a collective basis

- for loans classified in risk group “A”;
- for loans classified in the “small loans portfolio”;

- for all loans to a single debtor in bankruptcy procedure, if the Bank does not have the status of a creditor
with a separate satisfaction right and assesses these loans on an individual basis.

The small loans portfolio comprises the total Bank’s exposure to one person or a group of related persons that is
not individually significant, i.e. at the date of assessment does not exceed HRK 250,000. Thereby the total
exposure amount includes all active balance sheet and off-balance sheet items that are subject to classification in
risk groups.

The large loans portfolio, individually significant exposure, comprises the total exposure to one person or a group
of related persons whose total exposure at the estimation date exceeds HRK 250,000.

The credit risk assessment on an individual basis is a separate estimation of future cash flows and determining the
existence or non-existence of loss for each individual loan and each individual off-balance sheet fiability that the
Bank is obliged to apply in assessing loans and off-balance sheet liabilities that make an integral part of individually
significant exposure.

Credit risk assessment on a collective basis is a collective estimation of future cash flows and determining the
existence or non-existence of loss for groups with similar characteristics of credit risk and off-balance sheet
liabilities, and is performed in the following cases:

- in assessing the quality of loans and off-balance sheet liabilities for which evidence of the existence of visible
losses was not identified, but which might bear latent losses, estimated on the basis of experience on a collective
basis (this assessment includes all loans and off-balance sheet liabilities of the risk group A)

- in assessing identified losses for loans included in the small loans portfolio.

Finally, it should be noted that the Bank is currently in the process of upgrading and modifying the internal rating
model, which will be introduced in the Bank’s operations in the first half of year 2017. This rating model will
improve credit risk assessment and estimation, for the purpose of accurate and timely credit risk management in
the Bank.
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38 RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES {continued)
38.1 Credit risk (continued)

38.1.2. Risk limit control and policies for risk mitigation

The Bank manages credit risk levels by limiting credit risk with respect to a single customer, or a group of
customers, and geographic and economic activity segments. Limits set by reference to products, industry sectors
and countries are approved by the Bank’s management. The credit risk exposure is also managed by a regular
analysis of the ability of the existing clients and potential clients to settle their liabilities of repaying interest and
principal and by changing credit limitations where necessary.

Further specific measures for credit risk control and mitigation are stated below.
{(a) Collaterals and credit enhancements

The Bank uses policies of security instruments for receivables that prescribe the main rules aimed at minimising
the risk from credit operations. Security instruments for receivables represent the secondary collection source,
while the clients’ operations and their ability to generate sufficient cash funds for settling financial liabilities are
the primary source of coilecting the Bank's receivabies. The ruies that prescribe the obiigation to take security
instruments for which the normative acts prescribe the conditions for acceptability, individuaily for each of the
specific security instruments categories are standardised. Also, specific modalities of credit protection aimed at
decreasing or mitigating credit risks are determined.

The most significant types of security instruments for loans and receivables are as follows:

a) Mortgage over property,

(=)

c

)

) Pledge over operating/tangible assets,

) Pledge over financial instruments such as debt or equity securities
)

o

Insurance policies for loan receivables, life insurance policies with redemption values and other instruments
whose quality based on evidence may be equalised with the quality of other above-mentioned instruments.

Non-current financial assets, loans to companies and natural persons are generally secured by appropriate security
instruments.

In addition, in order to reduce credit ioss, the Bank requires additional collaterals from the contractual parties as
soon as indicators of impairment for individual relevant loans and advances are determined. The collateral held as
security for all financial assets other than loans and advances is determined on the basis of the nature of the
instrument. Debt securities, treasury and other bills are generally not secured, with the exception of securities
with coverage in assets and similar instruments secured by financial instruments portfolios.

(b) Loan commitments

Loan commitments are unused granted loan amounts in the form of loans, guarantees or letters of credit. With
respect to credit risk from loan commitments, the Bank is potentially exposed to loss in the amount equal to the
total unused commitments.

However, the potential loss amount is lower than the total amount of unused commitments, since the majority of
commitments depends on maintaining specific credit standards by the clients. The Bank monitors the remaining
period to loan maturities as non-current liabilities generally have a higher degree of credit risk compared to
current liabilities.
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38 RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (continued)
38.1 Credit risk (continued)

38.1.3. Impairment and provisioning policies

The amount of provisions for impairment in the portfolio of clients monitored on an individual basis is determined
using the dynamic approach, on the basis of the calculation of the loan’s recoverable value, calculated as the net
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate of the loan at the moment
when it was assessed as “non-performing” (for loans granted at fixed rates it is the original effective rate
calculated at the moment of granting). The regulations of the Croatian National Bank on minimum rates of special
provisions in special cases are also taken into account.

Instruments of credit protection for which the nominal value is discounted are as follows:
- pledge over housing property
- pledge over other property and movables for which the market exists and which may be sold in
acceptable time periods.
Discounting future cash flows to the present value is calculated individually for all long-term loans from the large
loans portfolio for which the impairment loss was identified and it is estimated that their future cash flow from
operating activities and cash flow from security instruments will not be sufficient.

Based on the repayment on time criteria, loans in the large loans portfolio are classified into the following risk
groups:

1) risk group "A" includes loans that meet the following criteria:

- the debtor’s current financial situation and estimated future cash flows do not rise any doubts with respect to
the debtor’s further operations and settlement of their current and future liabilities to the Bank and other
creditors,

- the debtor settles their liabilities to the Bank in contracted terms, and only exceptionally and occasionally
after their maturity,

- the loans are secured by adequate security instruments for receivables.

2) Risk group B1 (foans for which the determined loss does not exceed 30% of the nominal carrying amount of
individual loans).

3) Risk group B2 (loans for which the determined loss is from 30% to 70% of the nominal carrying amount of
individual loans).

4) Risk group B3 (loans for which the determined loss is over 70% and less than 100% of the nominal carrying
amount of individual loans).

5) Risk group C (fully unrecoverable loans are considered to be Bank’s receivables arisen on a disputable legal
basis and other receivables for which, due to an exceptionally poor asset and financial position of the debtor,
and due to the lack of adequate security instruments, no cash flows may be expected for settling the debtor’s
liabilities to the Bank). The Bank is obliged to classify such loans in the risk group C. Loans classified in the risk
group C, 100% impaired, are recorded by the Bank in the balance sheet until all legal procedures are finalised
related to the termination of the debtor’s liability, in line with the policies and procedures of the credit
institution and the law that regulates civil obligations.
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38 RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES {continued}

38.1 Credit risk (continued)

38.1.3. Impairment and provisioning policies {continued)

Specific provisions for impairment for the remaining portfolio of non-performing small loans (exposures below HRK
250 thousand) are calculated by reference to the regularity of payment.

Based on the timeliness of repayment, loans in the small loans portfolio are classified into the following risk
groups:

1) Risk group "A" includes fully recoverable loans. For a loan to remain classified in the risk group "A", the
following conditions must be met:

- the debtor’s past due liabilities to the Bank are not older than 90 days
- the full loan amount is covered by a guarantee deposit.

2) Risk group "B" or "C" loans must be provided for on the basis of the number of days of late payment according
to specially determined tables

3) Risk group "C" includes loans that do not meet the conditions for classification in risk groups "A" and "B", and
100% unrecoverable loans, as follows:

- unsecured loans (default in payments > 365 days);

- loans classified in the 100% provision position according to speciaily determined tables.

38.1.4. Debt securities

For the purpose of realising future yield, the Bank usually invests surplus liquid funds in high-quality government
debt securities and foreign bonds.

38.1.5. Past due loans and receivables

Past due loans and receivables by type at 31 December 2017

Investments | Agriculture Credit cards

Past due ‘ Cash and working | "8 . and Housing Other Total |
| | , and tourism |
| . capital k overdrafts |
| Upto30days | 82 6,266 2,013 | 8,259 9 : 675 17,304
[ 31-60 days | 45 1,059 | 189 77 2 | 698 2,070 |
| 61-90 days 317 | 4 | - - 1 6 328 |

Over 90 days | 4,429 : 217,977 ] 17,732 2,720 1,326 83,006 | 327,190 |
| Total | 4,873 | 225,306 19,934 1,056 | 1,338 | 84,385 l 346,892 |

75



CROAT!A BANKA d.d.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year 2017 (continued)

38 RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES {continued}

38.1 Credit risk {continued)

38.1.5. Past due loans and receivables (continued)

Past due loans and receivables by type at 31 December 2016

| Credit cards |

Investments Agriculture | ]
| Past due | Cash and working B . and | Housing | Other Total :
| ) and tourism |
| | _ capital overdrafts | [
| Upto30days | 90 | 4,052 5,097 7,504 | 10 | 2,043 18,796
| 3160days | 122 | 11,072 184 - 1| 993 12,372

6190 days | 30 | 317 - - | 1] 5 353
| Over90days | 3,416 | 212,528 18,554 2,630 | 1,203 | 89,267 327,598
| Total | 3,658 227,969 23,835 10,134 | 1,215 [ 92,308 359,119
38.1.6 Notimpaired loans at 31 December 2017
] Investments | Agriculture Credit |
| Cash and working and cards and Housing Other ! Total
; capital tourism overdrafts |
N | |
dS; Vet | 162,267 194,249 49,512 18,681 54,791 468,227 | 947,727
Due 65 5,179 2,050 3,632 6 148 : 11,080
Total 162,332 199,428 51,562 22,313 54,797 468,375 ' 958,807
Not impaired loans at 31 December 2016
Investmen . I . ]
e Agricultu Credit |
: Cash . re and cards and Housing Other Total
working )
. tourism overdrafts
. capital
Not yet due 161,923 251,970 | 50,845 40,645 56,022 | 829,749 | 1,391,154
Due 93 | 14,160 | 5,192 7,001 S | 2,839 | 29,294
i Total 162,016 | 266,130 ‘ 56,037 47,646 56,031 I 832,588 | 1,420,448

Not impaired locans and receivables refer to placements classified in risk groups AA. The placements in the risk
group AA are loans and receivables regularly repaid by clients and not impaired by the Bank. Z

The line item 'Other' comprises the participation in syndicated loans in the amount of HRK 378,891 thousand
(2016: HRK 704,802 thousand), as well as lombard loans in the amount of HRK 15,516 thousand (2016: HRK
43,813), margin loans in the amount of HRK 20,979 thousand {(2016: HRK 25,935 thousand) and mortgage loans in
the amount of HRK 5,165 thousand (2016: HRK 7,255 thousand). The remaining balance consist of individual
smaller loans intended for diverse purposes.
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38 RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (continued)

38.1 Credit risk {continued)

38.1.7. Impaired loans

Impaired loans at 31 December 2017

w ; :
nvss::(;ent Agriculture Credit E
Cash | Aot | and cards and Housing Other Total
. g tourism overdrafts
_ | capital
Notyetdue | 3,743 | 30,551 7,707 23,316 | 783 49,284 115,384
Due | 4807 | 220,127 17,885 7,425 1330 | 84,238 335,812
Total | 8550 | 250,678 25,592 30,741 | 2,113 | 133522 451,196
Impairment [ 5,384 | 154,890 12,713 3,551 ! 1,093 i 71,028 248,659
Impaired loans at 31 December 2016
i Investments | AeTeuTRae Credit |
Cash | and working | & . cards and ! Housing Other Total
| and tourism '
capital | overdrafts
Not yet due 3,325 29,702 6,015 26 658 42,964 82,690 |
Due 3,564 213,810 18,643 3,133 1,205 88,896 329,251 |
Total 6,889 243,512 24,658 3,159 1,863 131,860 411,941 !
i Impairment 3,688 146,340 11,688 3,012 809 71,049 236,586 I

Within the line item ‘Other’, long-term loans for the restructuring of various placements in the amount of HRK
42,399 thousand (2016: 39.001 thousand) are the largest individual item, followed by long-term financial
restructuring loans in cooperation with the CBRD in the amount of HRK 44,223 thousand {2016: HRK 23,813
thousand), construction loans in the amount of HRK 11,110 thousand (2016: HRK 11,637 thousand) and loans for
making payments under guarantees and other sureties in the amount of HRK 3,176 thousand (2016: HRK 7,789
thousand). Remainder relates to individually insignificant loans for different purposes.
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38.1 Credit risk (continued)

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES {continued)

38.1.8. Placement structure by client’s business

Placement structure by type of activity at 31 December 2017

Total placements

- Placements of Placements of Impairment % of
Activity sector and off-balance . . . . L . .
B unimpaired value impaired value and provisions impairment
sheet liabilities
Agriculture, hunting, forestry and fishing 122,607 90,530 32,017 20,807 16,97
Manufacturing 248,802 106,965 141,837 67,021 26,20
Construction 417,310 312,764 104,546 79,784 19,12
Wholesale' and retail trade,‘repalr of 181,011 62,182 118,829 74,104 40,94
motor vehicles and household items
Service activities 225,155 149,576 75,579 27,958 12,42
Financial intermediation 28,376 25,138 3,238 1,222 4,31
Foreign financial institutions 26,947 26,947 0 216 0,80
CNB 272,943 272,943 0 2,184 0,80
Other activities 75,245 39,825 35,420 5,414 7,20
Actl‘wty secto'r's o.ut5|de the Croatian 340,008 312,508 27,500 25707 7,56
National Classification
TOTAL 1,938,404 1,399,438 538,966 304,417 15,70
Placement structure by type of activity at 31 December 2016
1
. Total placements Placements of Placements of Impairment and % of '
ACHVIEYEECLor and off-balance unimpaired value impaired value rovisions impairment
sheet liabilities P P P P
Agriculture, hunting, forestry and fishing 151,611 118,021 33,590 20,533 13,54
Manufacturing 238,939 110,068 128,871 61,201 | 25,61
1 i I
T
Construction 715,061 628,381 86,680 66,737 | 9,33
i 1
i . X |
| Wholesale' and retail trade,A repair of 218,177 124,946 93,231 | 71,160 | 32,62
matar vehicles and household items | [ |
| |
Service activities 312,894 256,153 56,741 | 28,344 9,06 |
Financial intermediation 53,268 52,269 999 } 1,461 | 2,74 |
I |
Foreign financial institutions 55,908 55,908 0 559 1,00 |
[ I |
| CNB 428,930 428,930 0 4,289 1,00 |
i 1 '
Other activities 93,769 65,408 28,361 | 5,264 5,61 |
PR » . 1 1 1 1
Actl.voty sectqrf olut5|de the Croatian 341,821 318,722 23,099 19,250 | 5,63 |
| National Classification |
i TOTAL 2,158,806 451,572 278,798 10,68 |

2,610,378
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38 RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES {continued)
38.1 Credit risk {continued)

38.1.9.Past due loans and advances to customers in risk groups B and C for which provisions have been made

Individuals Corporate customers Total

31 December 2017
Total exposure 62,395 388,801 451,196
Provisions 37,974 210,685 248,659
Total net exposure 24,421 178,116 202,537
Fair value of collateral 40,121 204,208 244,329
% of collateral coverage 164,29% 114,65% 120,63%
- o Individuals Corporate customers Total

31 December 2016
Total exposure 59,411 352,530 411,941
Provisions 32,230 204,356 236,586
Total net exposure 27,181 148,174 175,355
Fair value of collateral 40,475 200,560 241,035
% of collateral coverage 148,91% 135,35% 137,45%

38.1.10. Concentration risk

The Bank manages, restricts and controls credit risk concentrations in accordance with Credit Policy wherever such
risk is identified - particularly in respect of individual clients and groups, economic sectors and countries.
Concentration is determined at the level of exposure of a particular debtor (at the level of a group of related
persons) in relation to regulatory capital (over 10% of the recognized capital) and also by exposure of a particular
activity to the total exposure of the Bank.

The Bank establishes the level of credit risk that it takes by setting limits to the amount of risk accepted in relation
to a single client or group of customers, and to the geographical and economic segments. The Bank's Management
Board grants credit-limiting restrictions to products, economic sectors and countries.

Exposure to any borrower is further limited by sub-limits covering both balance and off-balance sheet exposure as
well as daily limitations (the liability's liability risk) in relation to the items traded. Actual exposure to restrictions is
monitored on a daily basis.

38.2. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk of loss arising from the existing or expected Bank’s inability to settle its cash liabilities at
maturities. This risk arises due to a mismatch of maturities of assets and liabilities, and is manifested as the risk
that it will not be possible to convert some receivable into cash in suitable term and at suitable price, i.e. that it
will not be possible to convert any non-cash form of assets into cash in a suitable timetable without loss.

The Financial Markets Sector, the Risk Management Service and the ALCO Committee are responsible for liquidity
risk management, while the Bank’s Management Board makes decisions, whereby precise roles in the liquidity
management process are allocated to the following organisational parts or Bank’s functionalities:

Cost rates are calculated by the Financial Markets Secto and the Treasury Department. The report does not include
funds received from the Croatian Bank for Reconstruction and Development.
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38 RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (continued)
38.2. Liquidity risk {continued)

Internal prices of products are approved by the Asset-Liability Committee (hereinafter: the ALCO). Internal prices
are calculated on a monthly basis, directly prior to the ALCO Committee meeting. Internal prices are confirmed by
the ALCO Committee and they are effective until their following meeting. The Risk Management Service is
responsible for controlling the limit, and if some of the limits are exceeded, it must immediately inform the
Management Board, the Liquidity Committee and the Asset-Liability Committee.On the relevant meeting of the
Asset-Liability Committee it is decided whether the limit excess is acceptable until a certain date or the Treasury
Department has to bring indicators within the prescribed limits in accordance with the strategy determined at the
Asset-Liability Committee meeting.

The allowed excess of liquidity indicators and the strategy defining the reasons for allowing the excess are
documented by the minutes of the Asset-Liability Committee meeting.

If the limits are not exceeded, but the early warning indicators related to the limits have been reached, the
Treasury Department prepares a written explanation for the Management Board and the Liquidity Committee
within not more than 3 working days about the reasons why the indicator of early warning has been reached and
with the proposal of possible solutions. The Management Board and the Liquidity Committee make the decision
on further action.

The Risk Management Service controls limits within the monthly report, and reports the exceeding of limits on the
ALCO meetings.

Sources of Bank financing are deposits and equity capital. The Bank continually reassesses liquidity risk by
identifying and following changes in financing that are necessary for accomplishing business aims set according to
Bank strategy. Moreover, the Bank manages a portfolio of liquid assets as a part of its liquidity risk management
strategy.

The Bank adjusts its operations concerning liguidity risk according to legal provisions and internal policies. The
Bank manages assets and sources of funds from a viewpoint of financial flows, cash flows and concentration, all
with the aim of adjusting cash inflows with Bank outflows.

Managing in that way assumes identification of known, expected and potential cash outflows and the production
of different asset and liabilities management strategies in order to secure the Bank needs for cash inflows.
According to the stated, the liquidity risk management system comprises the following: evaluation and
measurement of liquidity risk exposure, setting limits of liquidity risk exposure and reporting and supervision of
limit utilization.

Liquidity risk management is realized by operative management of short-term liquidity and by management of
long-term liquidity. Management of short-term liquidity is realized with maintenance of a regular liquidity reserve
in HRK and by planning and forecasting daily and weekly cash flows. The Bank produces daily, weekly, monthly and
annual liquidity plans and evaluates current and future outflows and inflows based on them.

Iindicators related to a possible crisis in the Bank’s liquidity and general crisis of the banking system liquidity are
monitored by the Risk Management Service and the Treasury Department, they are determined by the Risk
Management Service and reported to the Management Board, Liquidity Committee and/or the Asset-Liability
Committee.
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38 RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES {continued)

38.2 Liquidity risk (continued)

Future outflows under financial liabilities at 31 December 2017 represent undiscounted cash flows, including
future interest payments in the amount of HRK 25,137 thousand on received deposits and borrowings, classified by
maturities. Asset items are classified by maturities of the carrying amounts.

2017 Uptol 1to3 3to12 110 3 years Over 3 Total
month months months years

ASSETS

Cash 176,668 . - - - 176,668
Receivables from the Croatian National Bank 149,557 - - - - 149,557
Placements with banks 22,672 - 420 - - 23,092
Financial assets available for sale 65,381 589 150,397 347,876 322,810 887,053
Financial assets held to maturity - - - - - -
Loans and advances to customers 182,395 33,131 218,358 331,101 388,036 1,153,021
Other assets 32,562 - - : a 32,562
Total assets __629,235 33,720 369,175 678,977 710,846 2,421,953
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Liabilities to banks 17,241 10,116 35,040 - - 62,397
Demand deposits 411,882 - - “ - 411,882
Term deposits 98,573 147,325 705,806 738,176 16,478 1,706,358,00
Borrowings 43,674 764 2,182 93,982 23,673 164,275
Other liabilities 10,663 - - . - 10,663
Total liabilities 582,033 158,205 743,028 832,158 40,151 2,355,575
EQUITY

Share capital - - . - 474,600 474,600
Accumulated losses - - - - (321,167) (321,167)
Revaluation reserve - - - - (1,425) (1,425)
Total equity - - - - 152,008 152,008
Total liabilities and equity 582,033 158,205 743,028 832,158 192,159 2,507,583
Net assets/liabilities and equity 47,202 (124,485) (373,853) (153,181) 518,687 (85,630)
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38 RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (continued)

38.2 Liquidity risk (continued)

Future outflows under financial liabilities at 31 December 2016 reflect undiscounted cash flows, including future
interest payments in the amount of HRK 89,597 thousand on received deposits and borrowings classified by
maturities. Assets positions are classified by maturities of carrying amounts.

2016 SRDE S i 1to3 Over 3 years Total
month months months years

ASSETS

Cash 276,808 - - - - 276,808
Receivables from the Croatian National Bank 191,709 - - - - 191,709
Placements with banks 52,903 - 431 - - 53,334
Financial assets available for sale 54,192 37,141 429,479 37,314 275,647 833,773
Financial assets held to maturity 43,809 1,606 515 4,717 - 50,647
Loans and advances to customers 212,947 55,936 392,713 415,789 513,258 1,590,643
Other assets 35,759 - . - - 35,759
Total assets 868,127 94,683 823,138 457,820 788,905 3,032,673
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Liabilities to banks 15,223 7,182 70,080 . . 92,485
Demand deposits 471,935 - - - - 471,935
Term deposits 166,185 231,338 1,194,414 477,750 12,687 2,082,374
Borrowings 80,008 4,539 25,281 47,626 146,889 304,343
Other liabilities 9,109 - . - - 9,109
Total liabilities 742,460 243,059 1,289,775 525,376 159,576 2,960,246
EQUITY

Share capital - - - - 474,600 474,600
Accumulated losses - - - - {290,536) (290,536)
Revaluation reserve - - - - 5,571 5,571
Total equity - - - - 189,635 189,635
Total liabilities and equity 742,460 243,059 1,289,775 525,376 349,211 3,149,881
Net assets/liakilities and equity 125,667 (148,376) (466,637) (67,556) 439,694 (117,208)
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38  RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES {continued)

38.3. Market risk

Market risks represent potential effects that external conditions may have on the value of assets, liabilities and off-
balance sheet positions of the Bank, and are caused by changes in prices and movements in financial markets.

All instruments for trading are subject to market risk, the risk that future changes in market conditions can make
an instrument unfavourable or lead to value reduction.

The Bank manages financial instruments available for sale according to changes in market conditions. Expasure to
market risk is formally managed by buying or selling instruments according to limits set by Management.

Market risk is the risk of loss on balance sheet and off-balance sheet positions arising from unfavourable
movements in prices on some of the 4 fundamental markets: debt securities, foreign currencies, commodity and
equity securities markets.

Market risks are as follows:
- Interest rate risk
- Currency risk
- Price risk — risk of a change in prices of equity and debt securities.

Interest rate risk is defined by the impact of changes in market interest rates on the Bank’s financial results. The
Bank’s daily activities depend on the interest rate risk impacted by the terms of collection of assets and liabilities in
relation to interest income and expenses or the terms in which interest rates change. These terms are controlled
by the ALCO by defining the interest rate [imits and coordinating activities that the bank has to take.

Interest rate risk is described in more detail in chapter 38.3.2. of the Report.

The Bank's activities are exposed to the risk of changes in the value of main currencies, which impacts the Bank’s
financial result and cash flow. The Bank controls foreign currency assets and foreign currency liabilities with the
aim to avoid an inadequate currency risk.

The Management Board defined internal limits of open foreign currency position that are below the legally
prescribed limits determined in line with the CNB Regulation.

Currency risk is described in more detail in the following chapter of the Report (item 38.3.1.).

Market risk managements is performed in the Financial Markets Sector, Risk Management Service and the ALCO,
and the Bank’s Management Board is informed and makes decisions.
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38 RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES {continued)

38.4. Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk of loss that results from currency changes.

Exposure to currency risk materializes from holding assets and liabilities and/or off-balance sheet items
denominated and/or indexed in foreign currency, or when they are structurally unadjusted in cases of
unfavourable movement of HRK towards international currencies as well as unfavourable mutual movements of
currencies.

Currency risk management process includes: identifying the Bank’s exposure to currency risk, measuring currency
risk exposure, defining boundaries and limits of currency risk exposure, instruments and processes for risk
optimisation, currency risk management process supervision, reporting on the currency risk exposure.

At the end of each working day, the Bank adjusts its total open FX position so that the total open FX position
(increased by the position in gold) does not exceed the amount of regulatory capital determined in line with the
regulations of the Croatian National Bank.

The Bank uses the Value at Risk methodology (VaR) to evaluate exposure to market risk and expected maximum
loss for the position in trading and other activities. VaR represents a statistically based evaluation of potential
losses on the existing portfolio due to unfavourable market movements.

The Value at Risk method measures the maximum expected loss for the Bank in case of most unfavourable foreign
currency movements in an observed time interval with normal market conditions and a given level of significance
based on historical data. The Bank directs its business activities primarily trying to minimize the mismatch between
assets' and liabilities' items denominated in foreign currency or carrying an FX clause. The Bank seeks to manage
its assets and liabilities by matching the currencies of the individual asset and liability items to optimise the
relationship between risk and profitability in unfavourable inter-currency movements.

The potential maximum daily loss of open foreign currency position (VaR: confidence interval 95%) as of
31.12.2017. was HRK 22 thousand (2016 : HRK 21 thousand).
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38 RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (continued)

38.4. Currency risk (continued)

FX assets and liabilities of the Bank as at 31 December 2017 are shown as follows:

HRK,

2017 EUR USD  Other  currency . HRK Total
ZiaTTe equivalents

ASSETS
Cash 76,000 3,398 17,006 - 96,404 80,264 176,668
Receivables from the Croatian National
Bank - - - - 149,557 149,557
Placements with banks 420 14,902 7,770 - 23,092 23,092
Financial assets available for sale 491,378 - - 292,809 784,187 102,866 887,053
Financial assets held to maturity - - . - - - -
Loans and advances to customers 297,817 4,167 613 351,614 656,052 498,810 1,153,021
Investment property = : E = = 33,630 33,630
Property and equipment - - E = - 6,280 6,280
Intangible assets - - 4,187 4,187
Foreclosed assets - - 15,397 15,397
Assets available for sale - - - 5,280 5,280
Deferred tax assets - - - - - 4,089 4,089
Other assets 744 3 - 747 31,815 32,562
Total assets 866,359 22,467 25,392 644,423 1,560,482 932,175 2,490,816
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Liabilities to banks 1,804 85 238 - 2,127 60,046 62,173
Demand deposits 121,822 5,543 5,488 - 132,853 279,029 411,882
Term deposits 1,384,255 18,909 19,131 12,274 1,434,569 247,659 1,682,228
Borrowings - - - 414 414 163,078 163,492
Other liabilities 154 2 - - 156 10,507 10,663
Provisions N - - - - 8,370 8,370
Total liabilities 1,508,035 24,539 24,857 12,688 1,570,119 768,689 2,338,808
EQUITY
Share capital - - - 474,600 474,600
Accumulated losses - - - - - {321,167) {321,167)
Revaluation reserve - - - (1,425) (1,425)
Total equity - 152,008 152,008
Total liabilities and equity 1,508,035 24,539 24,857 12,688 1,570,119 920,697 2,490,816
Net assets/liabilities and equity (641,676) (2,072) 535 631,735 (11,478) 11,478 -
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38 RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES {continued)

38.4. Currency risk (continued)

FX assets and liabilities of the Bank as at 31 December 2016 are shown as follows:

HRK,

2016 EUR usb Other currency '!'otal FX HRK Total
clause equivalents

ASSETS
Cash 184,262 2,264 19,044 205,570 71,238 276,808
Receivables from the Croatian National
Bank - 191,709 191,709
Placements with banks 422 43,306 9,606 53,334 53,334
Financial assets available for sale 413,747 - - 221,560 635,307 198,466 833,773
Financial assets held to maturity - 50,647 50,647
Loans and advances to customers 611,719 732 379,178 991,629 539,014 1,590,643
Investment property < - 33,702 33,702
Property and equipment - - 13,427 13,427
Intangible assets - - - 4,926 4,926
Foreclosed assets - - - 23,389 23,389
Deferred tax assets - - - 1,898 1,898
Other assets 390 13 - 403 35,356 35,759
Total assets 1,210,540 45,570 29,395 600,738 1,886,243 1,223,772 3,110,015
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Liabilities to banks 1,806 98 - - 1,904 90,191 92,095
Demand deposits 109,774 7,620 8,505 - 125,899 346,036 471,935
Term deposits 1,577,029 40,367 20,825 18,065 1,656,286 388,276 2,044,562
Borrowings - - - 114,926 114,926 177,077 292,003
Other liabilities 149 - 908 - 1,057 8,052 9,109
Provisions - - - 10,676 10,676
Total liabilities 1,688,758 48,085 30,238 132,991 1,900,072 1,020,308 2,920,380
EQUITY
Share capital 474,600 474,600
Accumulated losses - - {290,536) (290,536)
Revaluation reserve - - 5,571 5,571
Total equity - - 189,635 189,635
Total liabilities and equity 1,688,758 48,085 30,238 132,991 1,900,072 1,209,943 3,110,015
Net assets/liabilities and equity (478,218) (2,515) (843) 467,747 (13,829) 13,829 -
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38.5. interest rate risk

Interest rate risk in the Bank’s trading book is the risk of loss arising from possible changes in interest rates, which
impact the items in the Bank’s book. This risk arises due to a mismatch of assets and liabilities with respect to their
type, base and amount of interest rates.

Repricing risk is the risk of a decrease in net interest income due to changes in interest rates and a decrease in
economic value of capital due to changes in interest rates.

Interest rate risk is a result of: temporary mismatch in revaluation of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items;
early repayment of loans, deposit withdrawal (term and without term) or the difference in the movements of

active and passive interest rates (basic {(primary) risk).

The Bank's operations are exposed to the risk of changes in interest rates to the extent that interest-bearing assets
and Ilabulltles mature or thelr |nterest rates change in different perlods orin dlfferent amounts Risk management

market rates.

Activities of managing “asset-liability” risks are performed in the context of the Bank's sensitivity to interest rate
changes. Exposure to risk of interest rate changes is a consequence of assets’ and liabilities' items mismatch
considering the possibility of interest rate changes, and it is supervised by applying an analysis of assets' and
liabilities' mismatch. The aim of interest rate risk management is to secure an optimal and stable net interest
margin, and thus net profit. Interest rate risk is minimized by accepting deposits and approving loans as well as
with investments carrying fixed interest rates.

The main elements of the interest rate risk management are as follows:

- interest rate sensitivity analysis

- establishing internal limits and thresholds (limit of a decrease in economic value or maturity periods)

- control of performing/fulfilling/meeting the set limits;

- testing the resistance to stress for interest rate risk and the analysis of the results obtained;

- introducing hedging operations if required.

87



CROATIA BANKA d.d.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year 2017 (continued)

38 RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES (continued)

38.5. Interest rate risk {continued)

The table below shows the carrying amounts of the Bank’s assets and liakilities at 31 December 2016, classified
into categories by the earlier of contractual repricing and maturity.

mn

thousands
of HRK
Non-
2017 SRifp £ o ='oks 1to 3 years R interest Total
month months months years .
bearing
ASSETS
Cash - £ 176,668 176,668
Receivables from the Croatian National - - =
Bank 149,557 149,557
Placements with banks 23,083 = = 9 23,092
Financial assets available for sale 50,000 150,195 347,876 322,824 16,158 887,053
Financial assets held to maturity = & = ¥ - -
Loans and advances to customers 143,024 36,676 454,204 343,929 73,871 101,317 1,153,021
Investment property - = = = L 33,630 33,630
Property and equipment = ] = = 6,280 6,280
Intangible assets = d ] s 4,187 4,187
Foreclosed assets = - ] = 15,397 15,397
Assets available for sale ] - = - 5,280 5,280
Deferred tax assets = - d 2 < 4,089 4,089
Other assets ] = ] ] * 32,562 32,562
Total assets 216,107 36,676 604,399 691,805 396,695 545,134 2,490,816
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Liabilities to banks 10,000 51,890 - - 283 62,173
Demand deposits 238 407,835 - - 3,809 411,882
Term deposits 94,372 144,045 670,050 728,329 15,001 30,431 1,682,228
Borrowings 40,170 715 1,986 93,694 23,454 3,473 163,492
Other liabilities = 3 - 10,663 10,663
Provisions 3 - ' - 8,370 8,370
Total liabilities 134,780 154,760 1,131,761 822,023 38,455 57,029 2,338,808
EQUITY
Share capital 474,600 474,600
Accumulated losses - (321,167} (321,167)
Revaluation reserve - (1,425) {1,425)
Total equity = - - - 152,008 152,008
Total llabilities and equity 134,780 154,760 1,131,761 822,023 38,455 209,037 2,490,816
Net assets/liabilities and equity 81,327 (118,084) (527,362) (130,218) 358,240 336,097 -
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38.5. Interest rate risk (continued)

The table below shows the carrying amounts of the Bank’s assets and liabilities at 31 December 2016, classified
into categories by the earlier of contractual repricing and maturity.

in

thousands
of HRK
Non-
2016 Uptol e SEEs 1to 3 years QSRS inter:st Total
month months months years |
bearing
ASSETS
Cash - - - - - 276,808 276,808
Receivables from the Croatian National
Bank E - - - - 191,709 191,709
Placements with banks 53,314 - - - - 20 53,334
Financial assets avaitable for sale 50,000 35,060 428,531 37,314 278,526 4,342 833,773
Financial assets held to maturity 43,000 1,650 500 4,775 - 722 50,647
Loans and advances to customers 169,710 142,568 766,586 316,869 75,178 119,732 1,590,643
Investment property = - - - - 33,702 33,702
Property and equipment - - = - - 13,427 13,427
Intangible assets . - - - - 4,926 4,926
Foreclosed assets - - . - - 23,389 23,389
Deferred tax assets - - - - - 1,898 1,898
Other assets - - - - - 35,759 35,759
Total assets 316,024 179,278 1,195,617 358,958 353,704 706,434 3,110,015
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Liabitities to banks 11,275 7,000 73,402 - - 418 92,095
Demand deposits 238 . 456,236 - - 15,461 471,935
Term deposits 159,061 220,053 1,148,531 454,527 11,309 51,081 2,044,562
Borrowings 73,901 4,062 24,664 42,707 141,075 5,594 292,003
Other liabilities - - - - - 9,109 9,109
Provisions - - - - - 10,676 10,676
Total liabilities 244,475 231,115 1,702,833 497,234 152,384 92,339 2,920,380
EQUITY
Share capital - - - - . 474,600 474,600
Accumulated losses - - - - - {290,536) (290,536)
Revaluation reserve = - - - - 5,571 5,571
Total equity - - - - - 189,635 189,635
Total liabilities and equity 244,475 231,115 1,702,833 497,234 152,384 281,974 3,110,015
Net assets/liabilities and equity 71,549  (51,837) (507,216) (138,276} 201,320 424,460 -
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38.5. Interest rate risk (continued)

The table below shows effective interest rates for interest-bearing assets and liabilities.

- w7 2016
{(in %) {in %)

Assets

Cash (0.65)-0.00 0.00-0.00
Placements with banks 0.00-4.50 0.00-4.50
Financial assets available for sale 0.05-7.26 0.17-6.50
Loans and advances to customers 2.10-10.50 3.00-10.50
Equity and liabilities

Liabilities to banks 0.15-1.40 0.90-1.90
Demand deposits 0.00-0.06 0.01-2.50
Term deposits 0.01-2.10 0.07-3.15
Borrowings 0.20-1.80 0.30-5.00

38.6. Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices,
whether caused by factors specific to an individual investment, its issuer or all factors affecting all instruments
traded in the market. The risk is managed by setting maximum volumes, limits and other restrictions. The Bank
manages the risk by setting Trading Book limits (generally not applied, and the Bank had no positions in the
Trading Book at 31 December 2017 and 2016), with the available-for-sale and held-to-maturity portfolio durations
being measured, monitored and reported regularly.

38.7. Market risk measurement techniques

Measurement techniques used for measuring and controlling market risks are the Value at Risk (VaR) method and
stress tests.

VaR method

The VaR method measures the Bank’s maximum loss (the maximum expected loss) in case of unfavourable
movements in FX exchange rates in a set time interval under normal market conditions and the set level of
reliability on the basis of historical data.

Currency exposure limits
The Bank is obliged to adjust its operations so that at any time the following structural principles are followed:

= the Bank internally determines that the Bank’s total open FX position does not exceed 25% of the Bank's
regulatory capital,

- the maximum allowed open FX position in EUR amounts to 20% of the regulatory capital,
= the maximum allowed open FX position in USD amounts to 10% of the regulatory capital,

= the maximum allowed open FX position by individual currencies other than EUR and USD amounts to 5% of
the regulatory capital.
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38.6 Market risk measurement technigues {continued;)

E— —e—— — — —— — — E— ——

Internal limit At 31.12.2017
! S — N 1 - S
Bank’s total open FX position : 25.00% | 2.00%
| Maximum open FX position in EUR 20.00% 1.73%
: Maximum open FX position in USD 10.00% 0.26%
‘ Maximum open FX position in other currencies 5.00% | 0.59% za CHF

Daily VAR calculation

In accordance with the provisions of Basel Il agreement on market risk measurement, the Bank has opted for the
VaR method for calculating its FX position exposure to changes in foreign currency exchange rates {the impact of
unfavourable movements in rates on the amount of open FX position).

For calculating VAR, the Bank develops the application of the Variance-Covariance Model, which implies the
assessment of the present open risk on the basis of movements in exchange rates.

The Risk Management Service reports on the Bank’s FX position under Value-at-Risk methodology on a daily basis,
and to the ALCO at their meetings.

Stress tests

Stress test is a risk management technique used for assessing potential impacts of specific events and/or changes
in several risk factors on the Bank’s financial position.

The purpose of the stress test is to determine whether the Bank has an appropriate level of capital in case of the
specific events and/or changes in several risk factors. These are unfavourable events that are difficult to foresee
(extreme, but possible) and that impact the Bank’s capital, risk profile and profit. The stress test may be divided
into the scenario analysis and sensitivity analysis.

The scenario analysis is a stress test that analyses the impact of simultaneous changes of several risk factors on the
Bank’s financial position in clearly defined stress scenarios. The sensitivity analysis is a type of stress test that
analyses the impact of a particular risk factor on the Bank’s financial position without the stress cause being
identified. The stress test is performed semi-annually.

In performing liquidity stress tests, the Bank assumes a liquidity shock on the market, such as deposit withdrawal
or inability to place on the market the instruments the Bank possesses without incurring significant loss. In doing
so, potential outflows are estimated under scenario and sensitivity analyses. In defining a scenario, the Bank
considers the circumstances that may arise upon the expiry of a significant volume of deposits or losing a part of its
unsecured sources of funding, including deposits from major customers etc. The baseline scenario used for the
purpose of the analysis, with individual factors having two levels of disturbance intensity, are defined as follows:

1) Internal crisis of the Bank,
2) Market crisis
3) A combination of both.

VaR is not used in performing liquidity stress tests, as in extreme circumstances the losses exceed the expected
losses in a much larger number of instances than envisaged using VaR.
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38.6. Market risk measurement technigues (continued)

Interest rate risk in the banking book

Interest rate risk in the banking book is the risk of loss arising from possible changes in interest rates that affect
items in the Bank's banking book. For the purposes of the stress tests, the Bank uses simplified calculation of the
changes in the economic value of the banking book, as defined in the Decision on the interest rate risk in the
banking book. A change of 200 and 300 basis points is assumed, exceptionally 500 basis points.

In order to determine the weights over time horizons for a 300-bp change, the following weights are applied:

Time zones Estimated
Time horizon oa e modified Weight (200bp) Weight (300bp) Weight (500bp)

duration
Up to 1 month 0.50 0.04 0.08% 0.12% 0.20%
1to 3 months 2.00 0.16 0.32% 0.48% 0.80%
3 to 6 months 4.50 0.36 0.72% 1.08% 1.80%
6to 12 months 9.00 0.71 1.43% 2.13% 3.55%
1to 2 years 1.50 1.38 2.77% 4.14% 6.90%
2 to 3 years 2.50 2.25 4.49% 6.75% 11.25%
3to 4 years 3.50 3.07 6.14% 9.21% 15.35%
4to 5 years 4,50 3.85 7.71% 11.55% 19.25%
5to 7 years 6.00 5.08 10.15% 15.24% 25.40%
7 to 10 years 8.50 6.63 13.26% 19.89% 33.15%
10 to 15 years 12.50 8.92 17.84% 26.76% 44.60%
15 to 20 years 17.50 11.21 22.43% 33.63% 56.05%
Over 20 years 22.50 13.01 26.03% 39.03% 65.05%

The Bank performs the shock-test to determine the impact of a one-off increase or decrease of interest rates by
100 and 20 basis points over a one-year horizon.
The Bank has to align its operations so that the following structural principles are complied with at any time:

The economic value to regulatory capital, pursuant to the methodology of the CNB (200 bp), calculated on 31

December 2017.

Internal limit

Internal early
warning system

|
| At 31 December 2017

Economic value change / own funds

15%

13%

| 29.20%
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38.7. Operational risk

The Bank is exposed to operational risk in all its business activities. The aim of operational risk management is
identification of all chservable forms of operational risk, its control and minimization of exposure.

The Bank is trying to accomplish optimal management of operational risk according to the principles defined by
the regulator and Bank policies, and with the purpose of diminishing and mitigating operational risk. In relation to
this the Bank collects data on operational risk events, follows key risk indicators, conducts scenario
analysis,evaluates operational risk in its operations, reports to Management on operational risk exposure and
proposes measures for diminishing, mitigating and transferring operational risk. Operational risk does not have
material effect on Bank’s operations.

39 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The fair value of a financial instruments is the price that would be received from selling an asset or paid to transfer
a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, the so-called exit price.
Financial assets available for sale are measured at fair value, except for treasury bills, which are carried at the
balance sheet date at discounted values.

Table below summarises the year-end fair value estimates made by the Management Board.

Carrying amount Fair value

2017 2016 2017 2016
Financial assets
Loans to and receivables from banks 23,092 53,334 23,092 53,334
Loans and receivables from customers 1,154,862 1,550,643 1,126,079 1,564,350
Financial assets held to maturity - 50,647 - 50,647
Financial liabilities
Deposits from banks 62,173 92,095 62,173 92,095
Deposits from customers 2,094,110 2,516,497 2,059,842 2,485,858
Borrowings 163,492 292,003 163,492 292,003

Loans and receivables from customers and deposits from customers represent aggregate balances received
from/owed to corporate and retail customers that bear interest at different average variable rates, and their
effects are presented separately in the following tables.

Corporate customers Carrying amount Fair value

2017 2016 2017 2016
Financial assets
Loans and receivables from customers 781,671 1,212,482 771,990 1,205,413
Financial assets heid to maturity - 50,647 - 50,647

Financial liabilities
Deposits from customers 317,637 569,506 316,943 568,034
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39 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)

Individuals - Carrying amount Fair value
2017 2016 2017 2016

Financial assets
Loans and receivables from customers 373,191 378,161 354,089 358,937

Financial liabilities
Deposits from customers 1,776,473 1,946,991 1,742,899 1,917,824

Set out below is an overview of key methods and assumptions used in estimating the fair values of financial
instruments.

Loans to and receivables from banks

Loans and receivables are reported net of provision for impairment. The estimated fair value of loans and
receivables represents future cash flows, discounted using the current market rates to arrive at the fair value of
those assets.

Loans to and receivables from customers

Loans and receivables are reported net of provision for impairment. The estimated fair value of loans and
receivables represents discounted expected future cash flows Future cash flows are discounted using current
market rates to arrive at their fair value. Future expected losses are not considered, and no adjustment is
performed to reflect any amounts doubtful of collection (including timing uncertainty) for exposures under due
and reprogrammed amounts as well as under exposures not yet due but required to be monitored more closely.

Deposits from banks

Fair value estimates of fixed-maturity deposits are based on expected cash flows discounted using current market
rates on deposits with similar remaining maturities, but they may not be lower than the nominal amount of
deposits that may be called by customers at any time.

Considering their short maturity, Management considers that their carrying amounts do not differ from their fair
values.

Deposits from customers

The fair value estimate of fixed-maturity deposits is based on cash flows discounted at currently valid market rates
on deposits with similar remaining maturities, however, the fair value cannot be lower than the nominal amount
for those deposits that may be called by customers at any time. The value of client relationships is not taken into
account in assessing the fair value.
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40 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The main goal in managing the Bank’s capital is to ensure the compliance with all regulatory capital requirements

and maintain the credit rating and total capital adequacy to improve the operations.

The Bank manages its capital structure and adjusts it in accordance with changes in economic conditions and

characteristics of its business risks.

In managing capital, the Bank also follows the principles of:
- Compliance with all legally prescribed capital requirements
- Maintaining the Bank’s ability to continue operations and achieve the Bank’s goals
- Maintaining the strong capital base that will enable a continued and sustainable development with the

aim to achieve positive results in the income statement.

The Bank’s regulatory capital and the total capital rate, calculated in accordance with the requirements of the
Regulation (EU) ho 575/2013 only for the Bank, were as follows:

31 December 2017 31 December 2016

Own funds

Tier 1 capital
Issued share capital 474,600 474,600
Share premium - -

Accumulated losses (excluding the profit for the current year) (321,167) (292,174)
Legal, statutory and other reserves (7,252) (8,772)
Deductions pursuant to Regulation (EU) no. 575/2013 /i/ 146,181 173,654

Total Tier 1 capital

Additional capital - =
Total additional capital _

Deductions in respect of investments in banks and financial institutions

Total own funds 146,181 173,654

/i/ The amount includes deferred tax assets, intangible assets, unrealised losses on financial assets available for
sale (not offset with gains) and 0.1% on the entire portfolio of financial assets available for sale.

As at 31 December 2017, the Bank’s regulatory capital (own funds) amounts to HRK 146,181 thousand (2016: HRK
173,654 thousand).
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31 December 2017

31 Decemeber 2016

Capital adequacy according to the Regulation EU No.

575/2013

Capital requirements

Credit risk exposure 61,105 69,243
Balance sheet items 59,652 68,085
Off-balance sheet items 1,453 1,158

Currency risk exposure = =

Operating risk exposure 12,681 13,408

Total capital requirement 73,786 82,651

Additional capital requirements

Additional capital adequacy rate requirement 34,218 29,548

Capital conservation buffer 23,058 25,828

Systemic risk buffer 13,835 15,497

Total capital requirement 144,897 153,524

Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio 15.85% 16.81%

Tier 1 capital ratio 15.85% 16.81%

Total capital ratio 15.85% 16.81%

The comparative information presents the capital adequacy in accordance with the requirements of the Regulation

(EU) no. 575/2013. As at 31 December 2017, the total capital ratio is 15.85% (2016.: 16.81%).

At 31 December 2017 the Bank complied with all capital requirements, as well as at 31 December 2016.

Legal reserve

The Companies Act requires that 5% of profit for the year is added to this reserve until 5% of issued share capital is
reached. The legal reserve, amounting to 5% of the issued share capital, may be used to cover the current and

prior year losses.

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve includes unrealized gains and losses from changes in fair value of financial assets available
for sale as well as foreign exchange differences resulting from non-monetary financial assets available for sale.

Accumulated losses

Accumulated losses include losses accumulated from previous years.
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41 CONCENTRATIONS OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND OFF BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

Concentrations of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items are shown as follows:

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
- Off- Off-
balance balance
sheet sheet
Assets Liabilities items  Assets Liabilities items
Geographic region

Republic of Croatia 2,463,640 2,349,920 111,073 3,054,220 2,952,674 153,236
Europe 24,544 127,400 S 16,847 68,251 -

Other 2,632 13,496 - 38,948 89,090

Total b'v' geographical region 2,490,816 2,490,816 111,078 3,110,015 3,110,015 153,238

Sector

Repubtic of Croatia (state) 902,991 292,250 591 879,076 250,144 1,515
Croatian National Bank 121,860 107,826 - 235,209 161,295 -
Trade and commerce 119,534 23,956 10,447 171,375 29,094 5,552
Finance 55,349 80,828 400 104,035 112,808 5,515
Tourist trade 29,769 3,250 225 35,680 4,358 14
Agriculture 120,530 6,732 2,076 147,855 10,925 3,755
Manufacturing 614,469 41,070 51,909 904,331 44,252 48,470
individuals 504,567 1,732,430 15,868 542,447 1,901,558 22,026
Other 21,747 202,474 29,562 90,007 595,581 66,391
Total by sector 2,490,816 2,490,816 111,078 3,110,015 3,110,015 153,238
Allocated value of collateral 971,673 37,488 1,379,036 56,963

42 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

As of 31 December 2017, Mladena Duliba’s mandate of President of the Management Board expired. From
January 2, 2018, a member of the Supervisory Board Branko Grabovac was appointed as a Deputy member of the
Management Board with President of the Management Board function for a period of 3 months, i.e. until 2 April
2018. In that period, Branka Grabovac’ role as Supervisory Board's member is put on hold. By decision of the
Commercial Court in Zagreb, Branka Grabovac was as appointed member of the Management Board from April 3,
2018, for a period of 6 months, i.e. until 3 October 2018. Due to the incompatibility of the Supervisory Board and
Management Board functions, Branka Grabovac, as of April 2, 2018. resigned as a member of [
Board of the Bank. Ivan Sverko was member of the Bank’s Management Board until 31 January
February 2018, Zoran Saboli¢ was appointed as member of the Bank’s Management Board u
accordance with Commercial Court decision.

ifily 2018 in

Bramka Grabovac i Sabolic¢

Board Me mﬁrzﬁaf JO(’(—LL CROATLi@hAN KA

d.d. Zagreb
TFRATA

| 77
7

Boardq Member
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APPENDIX A — OTHER REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

SUPPLEMENTARY REPORT FOR THE CROATIAN NATIONAL BANK

The statutory financial statements presented below were prepared under the reporting requirements and the
financial reporting schedules determined by the CNB Decision on the structure and content of annual financial

statements of banks (the 'Decision’).

Balance sheet

2017 2016
1 CASH AND BALANCES WITH THE CNB (1.1+1.2) 307,880 449,721
1.1 Cash 34,952 20,866
1.2 Balances with the CNB 272,928 428,855
2 DEPOSITS WITH BANKING INSTITUTIONS 44,599 77,162
3 TREASURY BILLS OF THE MINISTRY OF FINANCE AND OF THE CNB 462,839 498,257
4 SECURITIES AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS HELD FOR TRADING
5 SECURITIES AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AVAILABLE FOR SALE
420,779 328,460
6 SECURITIES AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS HELD TO MATURITY
o 51,124
7 SECURITIES AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT FVTPL THAT ARE NOT
ACTIVELY TRADED
8 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS -
9 LOANS TO FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS 6,100 25,564
10 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO OTHER CUSTOMERS 1,161,777 1,582,720
11 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES =
12 FORECLOSED ASSETS 54,308 57,092
13 TANGIBLE ASSETS (NET OF DEPRECIATION) 6,409 13,504
14 INTEREST, FEES AND OTHER ASSETS 36,206 40,585
TOTAL ASSETS 2,500,897 3,124,189
LIABILITIES
1 LOANS FROM FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS (1.1+1.2) 160,631 290,320
1.1 Short-term borrowings 150,613 163,911
1.2 Long-term borrowings 10,018 126,409
2 DEPOSITS (2.1+2.2+2.3) 2,115,332 2,541,631
2.1 Balances on giro and current accounts 287,800 338,669
2.2 Savings deposits 123,845 117,806
2.3 Term deposits 1,703,687 2,085,156
3 OTHER BORROWINGS (3.1+3.2)
3.1 Short-term borrowings -
3.2 Long-term borrowings - -
4 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL AND OTHER LIABILITIES HELD FOR TRADING
5 ISSUED DEBT SECURITIES (5.1+5.2) - -
5.1 Short-term debt securities issued - -
5.2 Long-term debt securities issued
6 SUBORDINATED INSTRUMENTS ISSUED = .
7 HYBRID INSTRUMENTS ISSUED
8 INTEREST, FEES AND OTHER LIABILITIES 72,926 102,603
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,348,889 2,934,5_§i
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SUPPLEMENTARY REPORT FOR THE CROATIAN NATIONAL BANK (continued)

Balance sheet {continued)

EQUITY
1 SHARE CAPITAL 474,600 474,600
2 PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR (30,631) 1,638
3 RETAINED PROFIT/(ACCUMULATED LOSSES) (250,536) (292,174)
4 LEGAL RESERVES
5 STATUTORY AND OTHER CAPITAL RESERVES .
6 UNREALISED GAINS/(LOSSES) ON REVALUATION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AVAILABLE

FOR SALE (1,425) 5,571
7 HEDGING RESERVE . .

TOTAL EQUITY 152,008 189,635
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2,500,897 3,124,189
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SUPPLEMENTARY REPORT FOR THE CROATIAN NATIONAL BANK (continued)

Income statement

2017 2016
1 Interest income 98,078 131,241
2 Interest expense (44,101) (69,290)
3 Net interest income 53,977 61,951
4 Fee and commission income 10,452 12,056
5 Fee and commission expenses (4,753) (4,360)
6 Net fee and commission income 5,699 7,696
7 Gains/(losses) on investments in subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures - _
8 Trading gains/(losses) 3,161 3,405
9 Gains/(losses) on embedded derivatives - 3
10 Gains / (losses) on assets at FVTPL not actively traded -
11 Gains / (losses) on available-for-sale assets 9,773 6,679
12 Gains / (losses) on held-to-maturity (HTM) assets 5,411 1,026
13 Hedging gains/(losses) - -
14 Gains on investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures - -
15 Gains on other equity investments - -
16 Foreign exchange gains/(losses) (1,018) {490)
17 Other income 9,007 7,147
18 Other expenses (5,427) (3,221)
19 General administrative expenses and depreciation (65,794) (62,468)
20 Net profit from operations before impairment and provisions for losses 14,789 21,728
21 Impairment losses and provisions (46,076) {19,064)
22 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (31,287) 2,664
23 INCOME TAX 656 (1,026)
24 (LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (30,631) 1,638
25 Earnings/loss per share (6.45) 0.38
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SUPPLEMENTARY REPORT FOR THE CROATIAN NATIONAL BANK (continued)

Statement of Other Comprehensive Income

1. Profit/(loss) for the year

(30,631)

1,638

2. Other comprehensive income
2.1. Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

2.1.1. Tangible assets
2.1.2. Intangible assets

2.1.3. Actuarial gains/(losses) on remasurement of employee benefit plans

2.1.4. Long term assets and discontinued operations held for sale

2.1.5. Share of other income and expenses accrued by equity method

2.1.6. Income tax on items that would not be reclassified to profit or loss

2.2. Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss

2.2.1. Net investment in foreign operations hedge (effective share)

2.2.1.1. Gains or (losses) in equity

2.2.1.2. Transferred to profit or loss

2.2.1.3. Other reclassifications
2.2.2. Foreign exchange swap

2.2.2.1. Gains or {losses) in equity

2.2.2.2. Transferred to profit or loss

2.2.2.3. Other reclassifications
2.2.3. Cash flow hedge (effective share)

2.2.3.1, Gains or (losses) in equity

2.2.3.2. Transferred to profit or loss

2.2.3.3. Transferred to opening balance of hedged items

2.2.3.4. Other reclassifications
2.2.4. Financial assets available for sale

2.2.4.1. Gains or (losses) in equity

2.2.4.2. Transferred to profit or loss

2.2.4.3. Other reclassifications

2.2.5. Non-current assets and discontinued operations held for sale

2.2.5.1, Gains or {losses) in equity
2.2.5.2. Transferred to profit or loss

2.2.5.3. Other reclassifications

(6,996)

(6,996)

(8,531)
(1,814)
(6,717)

5,966

5,966

7,287
7,012
275
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2.2.6. Share in other income and expenses from investments in subsidiaries, venture
operations and associates

2.2.7. Income tax on items that may be reclassified to profit or loss 1,536 (1,322)
3. Total comprehensive income for the year (37,627) 7,604
4, Attributable to non-controlling interest - -
5. Attributable to owners of the Company (37,627) 7,604
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SUPPLEMENTARY REPORT FOR THE CROATIAN NATIONAL BANK (continued)
Cash flow statement

ITEM 2017 2016
Operating activities

Profit/(loss) before taxation (31,287) 2,664
Impairment allowance and provisions for losses 55,136 17,139
Depreciation and amortisation 3,425 3,470
Net unrealised (gains)/losses on financial assets and liabilities at FVTPL - (46)
(Gains)/losses on sale of tangible assets (4,073) (1,593)
Other (gains) / losses (17,912) (3,574)
Operating cash flows before changes in operating assets 5,289 18,060
Balances with the CNB 42,577 34,776
Treasury bills of the Ministry of Finance and of the CNB 35,418 22,044
Deposits with banking institutions and loans to financial institutions - -
Loans and advances to other customers 419,145 287,821
Securities and other financial instruments available for sale (78,428) (174,325)

Securities and other financial instruments held for trading - -

Securities and other financial instruments at FVTPL that are not actively traded -

Other operating assets 3,082 (12,923)
Net (increase) / decrease in operating assets 421,794 157,393
Demand deposits (50,869) (25,999)
Savings and term deposits (373,770) 4,544
Other liabilities (29,679) 28,137
Net increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities (454,318) 6,682
Net cash flow from operations before income tax (27,235) 182,135

Income taxes paid -
Net cash inflow / (outflow) from operating activities {(27,235) 182,135

Investing activities
Proceeds from sale/(Payments for purchases) of tangible and intangible assets 6,717 2,461

Proceeds from sale of/Payments for investments in subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures

Proceeds from/(Payments to acquire) securities and other financia! instruments

held to maturity 15,520 (2,746)
Dividends received - -
Other receipts/{payments) from financing activities (1,490) (4,067)
Net cash from investing activities 20,747 (4,352)

Financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in borrowings (128,511) (723)
Net increase/decrease of issued debt securities - <
Net increase/{decrease) in subordinated and hybrid instruments -

Other receipts/(payments) from financing activities

Increase in share capital - -

Net cash from financing activities (128,511) (723)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 180,424 26,303
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the year 152,834 126,531
The effects of changing foreign exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents 3,161 3,364
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 201,420 333,258
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SUPPLEMENTARY REPORT FOR THE CROATIAN NATIONAL BANK (continued)

Statement of changes in equity

Type of change in equity

Share capital

Retained
earnings /
(Accumulated
losses)

Profit/(Loss)
for the year

Unrealised gains/losses on
revaluation of financial
assets available for sale

Total
equity

At 1 January of the
current year

474,600

(292,174)

1,638

5,571

189,635

Change in the fair value
of financial assets
available for sale

(6,996)

(6,996)

Net gains/losses
recognised directly in
equity

Profit/{Loss) for the year

Total recognised income
and expenses for the year

Increase/Decrease in
share capital

Other changes

1,638

(1,638)

Balance at 31 December
of the current year

474,600

(290,536)

(30,631)

(1,425)

152,008
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SUPPLEMENTARY REPORT FOR THE CROATIAN NATIONAL BANK {continued)

Balance sheet reconciliation at 31 December 2017

ITEM CNB Decision Annual Report Difference
Assets
1 CASH AND BALANCES WITH THE CNB (1.1+1.2) 307,880 - 307,880
1.1 Cash 34,952 = 34,952
1.2 Balances with the CNB 272,928 - 272,928
2 DEPOSITS WITH BANKING INSTITUTIONS 44,599 - 44,599
Cash - 176,668 (176,668)
Balances with the CNB - 149,557 (149,557)
Placements with banks - 23,092 (23,092)
3 CNB TREASURY BILLS 462,839 - 462,839
4 SECURITIES AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS i )
HELD FOR TRADING
5 SECURITIES AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
AVAILABLE FOR SALE 420,779 887,053 (466,274)
6 SECURITIES AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS i B}
HELD TO MATURITY
7 SECURITIES AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS ) .
AT FVTPL THAT ARE NOT ACTIVELY TRADED
8 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS 2 - =
9 LOANS TO FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS 6,100 - 6,100
10 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO OTHER CUSTOMERS 1,161,777 1,153,021 8,756
11 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND i i
JOINT VENTURES
12 FORECLOSED ASSETS 54,308 15,397 38,911
13 TANGIBLE ASSETS (NET OF DEPRECIATION) 6,409 6,280 129
Investment property 33,630 (33,630)
Assets available for sale 5,280 (5,280)
Intangible assets 2 4,187 (4,187)
Deferred tax assets - 4,089 (4,089)
14 INTEREST, FEES AND OTHER ASSETS 36,206 32,562 3,644
TOTAL ASSETS 2,500,897 2,490,816 10,081
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SUPPLEMENTARY REPORT FOR THE CROATIAN NATIONAL BANK
(continued)
Balance sheet reconciliation at 31 December 2017 (continued)

ITEM CNB Decision Annual Report Difference
Liabilities and equity
1 LOANS FROM FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS (1.1+1.2) 160,631 - 160,631
1.1 Short-term borrowings 150,613 - 150,613
1.2 Long-term borrowings 10,018 - 10,018
Borrowings - 163,492 (163,492)
2 DEPOSITS (2.142.2+2.3) 2,115,332 2,156,283 (40,951)
2.1 Balances on giro and current accounts 287,800 - 287,800
2.2 Savings deposits 123,845 - 123,845
2.3 Term deposits 1,703,687 1,682,228 21,459
Demand deposits - 411,882 (411,882)
Ligbilities to banks - 62,173 (62,173)
3 OTHER BORROWED FUNDS (3.1+3.2) = - =
3.1 Short-term borrowings - . =
3.2 Long-term borrowings - - -
4 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL AND OTHER LIABILITIES HELD FOR TRADING
5 ISSUED DEBT SECURITIES (5.1+5.2) . - -
5.1 Short-term debt securities issued s 5
5.2 Long-term debt securities issued - =

6 SUBORDINATED INSTRUMENTS ISSUED - -

7 HYBRID INSTRUMENTS ISSUED - -

8 INTEREST, FEES AND OTHER LIABILITIES 72,926 10,663 62,575
Provisions - 8,370 (8,370)
TOTAL LIABILITIES (1+2+3+4+5+6+7+8) 2,348,889 2,338,808 10,081
Equity

1 SHARE CAPITAL 474,600 474,600 =

2 PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR (30,631) (30,631) -

3 RETAINED PROFIT/(ACCUMULATED LOSSES) (290,536) (290,536) -

4 LEGAL RESERVES - - -

5 STATUTORY AND OTHER CAPITAL RESERVES - - -

6 UNREALISED GAINS/(LOSSES) ON REVALUATION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
AVAILABLE FOR SALE

(1,425) {1,425) .

7 HEDGING RESERVE - = 4
TOTAL EQUITY 152,008 152,008 -
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 2,500,897 2,490,816 10,081
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SUPPLEMENTARY REPORT FOR THE CROATIAN NATIONAL BANK {continued]

Balance sheet reconciliation at 31 December 2017 {continued)

The departures on the items included in the Annual Report versus the standard under the CNB Decision comprise
the following:

ASSETS

Cash and deposits with the CNB, Deposits with banking institutions and Loans to financial institutions are items
separately shown under the CNB standard, while in the Annual report those items are shown within the items
Cash, Receivables from the CNB and Placements with banks. The CNB reporting line items Specific reserves for
identified losses on a collective basis is included in Interest, fees and other assets, whereas in the Annual Report
they are presented along with the items to which they relate.

Treasury bills of the Ministry of Finance and Securities and other financial instruments available for sale, disclosed
separately under the CNB standard, are aggregated in the Annual Report under Financial assets available for sale.

The line item 'Loans and advances to customers' reported in the Annual report includes loan principal and the
related accrued interest reduced by portfolio-based i.e. collective and individual provisions less overpaid loans and
collected interest income relating to future periods. The CNB report line items 'Loans to other customers' and
'Loans to financial institutions' include principal amounts reduced by individual provisions, whereas collective
provisions and accrued interest are presented under the line item 'Interest, fees and other assets’, and overpaid
loans and collected interest income relating to future periods under the line item 'Interest, fees and other
liabilities'.

In addition, Tangible assets disclosed under the CNB decision include inventories which are presented in the
Annual Report under Other assets.

Intangible assets are presented in the Annual Report separately, while in the CNB report they are included in
Interest, fees and other assets. In addition, Interest, fees and other assets disclosed under the CNB requirements
relate to the related receivables, whereas in the Annual Report interest receivable is presented along with the
items it relates to.

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Loans from financial institutions (both short-term and long-term) and other loans are items that are presented
separately under the CNB standard, and in the Annual Report they are included in Borrowings.

Giro account and current account balances, Savings deposits and Term deposits represent items under the CNB
standard, while in the Annual Report they are included under line items Demand deposits, Term deposits and
Liabilities to banks.

Restricted deposits are also included in the Interest, fees and other liabilities under the CNB disclosure
requirements, and in the Annual Report they are presented under Demand deposits.

Interest, fees and other liabilities is a separate line item under the CNB presentation requirements, and in the
Annual Report the individual components are included in Borrowings, Term deposits, Liabilities to banks,
Provisions and Other liabilities, as appropriate.
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SUPPLEMENTARY REPORT FOR THE CROATIAN NATIONAL BANK {continued)

Reconciliation of profit and loss items at 31 December 2017

ITEM CNB Decision Annual Report Difference
1 Interest income 98,078 98,156 (78)
2 Interest expense (44,101) (39,503) {(4,598)
3 Net interest income 53,977 58,653 (4,676)
4 Fee and commission income 10,452 10,453 (1)
5 Fee and commission expenses (4,753) (4,753) -
6 Net fee and commission income 5,699 5,700 (1)
7 Gains/(losses) on investments in subsidiaries,

associates and joint ventures - - -
8 Trading gains/(losses) 3,161 . 3,161
9 Gains/(losses) on embedded derivatives - ; -

10 Gains/(losses) on assets at FVTPL not actively

traded 2 = 2

Net financial (losses) gains - 15,184 (15,184)

Net gains from exchange differences = 2,743 (2,743)

11 Gains/(losses) on available-for-sale assets 9,773 - 9,773

12 Gains/(losses) on held-to-maturity (HTM) assets 5411 i 5,411

13 Hedging gains/(losses) = 2 z

14 Gains on investments in subsidiaries, associates and

joint ventures - - -

15 Gains on other equity investments . -

16 Foreign exchange gains/(losses) (1,018) = (1,018)

17 Other income 9,007 8,694 313

18 Other expenses (5,427) - (5,427)

19 General administrative expenses and depreciation (65,794) . (65,794)

Other operating expenses - (67,646) 67,646

20 Net profit from operations before impairment and

provisions for losses 14,789 23,328 (8,539)

21 Impairment losses and provisions (46,076) (54,615) 8,539

22 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (31,287) (31,287) -

23 INCOME TAX 656 656 -

24 LOSS FOR THE YEAR (30,631) (30,631} -

25 Loss per share (6.45) (6.45) -
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SUPPLEMENTARY REPORT FOR THE CROATIAN NATIONAL BANK (continued)

Reconciliation of profit and loss items at 31 December 2017 (continued)

The line items Interest income/Interest expense under the CNB standard include Net foreign exchange gains
which are reported in the Annual Report under Net foreign exchange gains.

Under the CNB standard, Trading gains/(losses), Gains/(losses) on embedded derivatives, Gains/(losses) on
exchange differences and the already mentioned net exchange differences on interest income/expense are
presented in the Annual Report, except for exchange differences on provisions which are included in the CNB
report in Impairment and provisions for losses.

Furthermore, under the CNB standards, Gains/(losses) on available for sale assets and Gains on other equity
investments are combined under Net financial (loss)/gains in the Annual Report.

Items Other expenses, General administrative expenses and depreciation under the CNB standard comprise the
line item Other operating expenses in the Annual Report, and the difference relates to provisions for legal actions
initiated against the Bank and to provisions for liabilities to employees which were included in the Annual Report
in Impairment allowance and provisions for losses.
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SUPPLEMENTARY REPORT FOR THE CROATIAN NATIONAL BANK (continued)

Reconciliation of the Statements of cash flows for 2017

ITEM CNB Decision Annual Report Difference
Operating activities

Profit/(loss) before taxation (31,287) (31,287) -
Impairment allowance and provisions for losses 55,136 55,136
Impairment allowance on loans and other assets {net) - 54,196 (54,196)
Provisions for contingent liabilities (net) - (423) 423
Litigation provision (net) 1,307 (1,307)
Other provisions (net) - 56 (56)
Depreciation and amortisation 3,425 3,425 -
(Gains)/losses on sale of tangible assets (4,073) (4,073) -
Foreign exchange differences on translation - (2,743) 2,743
Write-offs of tangible assets - 15 (15)
{Gains)/losses on realisation of available-for-sale assets - (15,184) 15,184
Other {gains) / losses (17,912) - (17,912)
Operating cash flows before changes in operating assets 5,289 5,289 -
Balances with the CNB 42,577 - 42,577
Decrease / Increase in receivables from the Croatian National Bank - 42,577 (42,577)
Treasury bills of the Ministry of Finance and of the CNB 35,418 - 35,418
Deposits with banking institutions and loans to financial i i i
institutions

Loans and advances to other customers 419,145 - 419,145
{Increase) in loans and advances to customers 415,377 (415,377)
Securities and other financiai instruments available for sale (78,428) - (78,428)
Securities and other financial instruments held for trading - - -
Securities and other financial instruments at FVTPL that are not ) i
actively traded

Other operating assets 3,082 13 3,069
Net (increase) / decrease in operating assets 421,794 457,967 (36,173)
Demand deposits (50,869) (60,053) 9,184
Savings and term deposits (373,770) (360,675) (13,095)
Increase/(decrease) in liabilities to other banks - {29,922) 29,922
Other liabilities (29,679) (1,692) (29,534)
Net increase / (decrease) in aperating liabilities (454,318) (452,342) (1,976)
Net cash flow from operations before income tax (27,235) 10,914 (38,149)
Income taxes paid -

Net cash inflow / {outflow) from operating activities (27,235) 10,914 (38,149)
Investing activities

i]r;cnegteislsef;(zgne;aIe/(Payments for purchases) of tangible and 6717 i 6,717
Praceeds fram sale of/(Payments for investment)s in subsidiaries, i

associates and joint ventures

Proceeds from/(Payments to acquire} securities and other 15,520 i 15,520

financial instruments held to maturity
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SUPPLEMENTARY REPORT FOR THE CROATIAN NATIONAL BANK (continued)

Reconciliation of the Statements of cash flows for 2017 (continued)

Purchase of financial assets available for sale

- (956,141) 956,141
Sale of financial assets available for sale - 917,993 (917,993)
Decrease in financial assets held to maturity - 15,520 (15,520)
Purchases of property, equipment and intangible assets - (1,491) 1,491
Increase in property investment 6,717 (6,717)
Other receipts/{payments) from financing activities (1,490) - (1,490)
Net cash from investing activities - 20,747 (17,402) 38,149
Financing activities— o -
Net increase/(decrease) in borrowings (128,511) (128,511) -
Proceeds from borrowings, net - - -
Net increase/(decrease) of issued debt securities - - -
Net increase/{decrease) in subordinated and hybrid instruments - - -
Other receipts/{payments) from financing activities -
Increase in share capital -
Net cash from financing activities (128,511) (128,511) -
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents h {134,999) (134,999) -
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the year 333,258 333,258 -
3,161 3,161 -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 201,420 201,420 -

The departures on the items included in the Annual Report versus the standard under the CNB Decision comprise
the following:

According to the CNB standard, impairment allowance and provisions for losses as a single amount, while in the
Annual Report they are shown within the items Impairment of loans and other assets, Provisions for contingent

liabilities, Provisions for judicial proceedings and Other provisions.

MoF treasury bills under the CNB standard, together with items Securities and other financial instruments
available for sale and Securities and other financial instruments held for trading are presented in the Annual

Report within Investing activities, while under the CNB standard they are presented within Operating activities.
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SUPPLEMENTARY REPORT FOR THE CROATIAN NATIONAL BANK (continued)

In accordance with Article 164 of the Credit Institutions Act, the Bank is required to disclose the following
information relating to the previous financial year:

vk W

Ad.1.

Banking and financial services provided, the nature of its activities and the geographic location of services
provision;

Amount of total income;
Number of employees on a full-time equivalent basis;
Amount of income tax; and

The amount of state subsidies received

In accordance with the Credit Institutions Act 164, the Bank engages in the following banking and financial services
in the country and abroad:

Receiving cash deposits,

Granting of loans and other placements on its own behalf and for its own account,
Issuing means of payment in the form of electronic money,

Issuing guarantees and other commitments,

Factoring,

Finance leasing,

Lending, including customer loans, mortgage loans and financing commercial transactions {including
forfeiting),

Trading on its own behalf and for its own account or on its own behalf and for the account of the client:
money market instruments and other transferable securities, foreign currencies, including currency
exchange, financial futures and options, currency and interest rate instruments,

Payment transactions in the country and abroad in accordance with special laws,

Collection, analysis and provision of information on the creditworthiness of legal entities and natural
persons who perform activities independently,

Issuing and management of payment instruments,

Rental of safe deposit boxes,

Representation in insurance,

Receipt and transfer of orders in relation to one or more financial instruments,

Execution of orders on behalf of clients,

Trading for own account,

Underwriting services, i.e. the sale of financial instruments with a purchase obligation,
Underwriting Services, i.e. the sale of financial instruments without a purchase obligation,

Safekeeping and administration of financial instruments for the account of clients, including custodianship
and related services such as cash management and security instruments,
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SUPPLEMENTARY REPORT FOR THE CROATIAN NATIONAL BANK {continued)

e Providing loans to investors to allow carrying out transactions with one or more financial instruments, if
the transactions involve a company that grants loans,

e  Foreign exchange services, if related to the provision of investment services,
e Services related to underwriting or selling financial instruments with a purchase obligation.
In accordance with the National Classification of Activities, the activities of Croatia banka are defined as: 64.19

Other monetary intermediation.
In 2017 Croatia banka performed its activities in the Republic of Croatia.

Ad.2.
In 2017, Croatia banka realised a total net income of HRK 85,398 thousand.
Ad.3.

As at 31 December 2017, Croatia banka had 195 employees based on the number of hours of work, but at the end
of 2017 the actual number of employees was 191.

Ad.4.

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. The Bank realised a taxable
loss for 2017 in total amount HRK 27,384 thousand, but has no obligation to pay income tax because it utilises the
benefit of tax losses brought forward from 2012 and 2013.

The amount reported under income tax relates to reversal of deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses upon the
revision of the Long-term financial plan and to net deferred tax assets on prepaid/paid benefits.

Ad.5.

In 2017 Croatia banka did not receive any state subsidies.
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HEADQUARTERS:

Address

Website
Telephone
Fax

E-mail

IBAN:

Roberta FrangeSa Mihanoviéa 9

10110 Zagreb

www.croatiabanka.hr

0800 57 57
01 2391 244

info@croatiabanka.hr

HR0324850031000009027

BUSINESS NETWORK

The City Address Phone Fax

Bjelovar Ulica Petra Zrinskog 14 043 241 610 043241612

Branch 43000 Bjelovar 043241611

Cakovec Ulica lvana Mazuraniéa 2 040 310 160 040310643

Branch 40000 Cakovec 040311672

Drenovci Veliki Sor 2 032 862 842 032 862 844

Branch 32257 Drenovci 032 862 843

Metkovic Ulica S.Radic¢a 8 020 681 013 020681 089

Branch 20350 Metkovic 020 681 082

Osijek Samadka ulica 1 031 203 001 031203 002

Branch 31000 Osijek 031 203 005

Pula Branch Istarska ulica 14 052 451 202 052 451 505
52100 Pula 052 451 304

PoZega Cehovska ulica 3

Branch 34000 Pozega 034 274 460 034 274 440
Trg Ivane Brli¢ Mazuranié

Slavonski 15 035442 112 035442 110

Brod Branch 35000 Slavonski Brod

. Ulica Matice Hrvatske 1

Split Branch 21000 Split 021539795 021539794

Vinkovci Duga ulica b.b.

Branch 32100 Vinkovci OS2SR 0533213

032 331 453
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CROATIA BANKA d.d.
BUSINESS NETWORK AND CONTACTS (continued)

The City Address Phone Fax

Virovitica Trg kralja Zvonimira 10

Branch 33000 Virovitica 033725441 033725602
Josipa Jurja

\éfak:c":r Strossmayera 5 032450520 032450 490
32000 Vukovar

Subiceva P

Outlet, SUBicEvalH 014623024 014623027
10000 Zagreb

Zagreb

Zagreb . N:
R.F. Mihanoviéa 9 012391667

Branch / Sky 01 2391 240

Office Outlet 10110 Zagreb 01 2391 282

Zupanja Strossmayerova 5

Branch 32270 Zupanja 032 831051 032833424
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